GOVERNMENT OF WEST BENGAL

IRRIGATION AND WATERWAYS DEPARTMENT NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT WORLD BANK FUNDED

NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING FOR

(Two-Envelope Bidding Process with e-Procurement)

"PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"

Bid Reference	:	Memo No: 57/NHP-02/02 Date: 24.01.2022
Tender documents	:	Can be downloaded from Website
		www.wbtenders.gov.in
Online Bid Submission Starting date & time	:	18.02.2022; 15:00 HRS
Online Bid Submission Closing date & time	:	02.03.2022; 15:00 HRS
Bid Clarification Starting date & time	:	25.01.2022; 10:30 HRS
Bid Clarification Closing date & time	:	07.02.2022; 11:00 HRS
Pre Bid Meeting date, time & venue	:	07.02.2022; 11:30 HRS
		The Superintending Engineer, Investigation & Planning Circle-II, Jalasampad Bhawan, 5th Floor, Block-DF, Sector - I, Salt Lake City, Kolkata-700 091Telephone: +91332358716 Facsimile number: +91332358716 Electronic mail address: seip2iwd@gmail.com
		Contact Persons: Sri Tridib Ranjan Barua(Superintending Engineer)
		Sri Manas Khan, (Executive Engineer)
Last date and time of Receipt of relevant document as mentioned (IFB) by Speed	:	02.03.2022; 15:00 HRS
Post/Courier/by hand.		
Date, Time and Venue of Opening of	:	28.01.2022; 16:30 HRS
Bids		O/OThe Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division I&W Department, Govt of West Bengal

SECTION I: INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB)

NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING FOR

"PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"

(Two-Envelope Bidding Process with e-Procurement) <u>INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB)</u> E-Procurement Notice

Memo No: 57 / NHP-02 / 02 Date: 24.01.2022

IBRD Loan No. : 8725IN

Package No : NHP-2019-2020-WBSW-273665 IFB No. : WBIW/NHP/IFB-17/2021-22

1. This Invitation For Bid follows the General Procurement Notice for this Project that appeared in Development Business on 9th March, 2017

The Government of India has received financing from the World Bank towards the cost of National Hydrology project and it is intended that part of the proceeds will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for "PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"

2.

The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division I&W Department, Govt. of West Bengal now invites online bids from eligible bidders for "PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"

Bidding will be conducted through the National Competitive Bidding (NCB) procedures agreedwith the World Bank. The bidding is open to all eligible bidders as defined in the Bank's Procurement Guidelines. In addition, please refer to paragraphs 1.6 and 1.7 of the Guidelines setting forth the World

Bank's policy on conflict of interest.

4. Bidding documents are available online on www.wbtenders.gov.infor a non-refundable fee as indicated below, in the form of Demand Draft/Cashier's cheque/Certified cheque on any Scheduled/Nationalized bank payable at Burdwan in favour of The Executive Engineer, Burdwan

Investigation & Planning Division,Govt. of West Bengal. Demand Draft to be submitted subsequently as per the procedure described in paragraph 7 below). Bidders will be required to register in the website, which is free of cost. The bidder would be responsible for ensuring that any addenda available on the website is also downloaded and incorporated.

- (a) Price of bidding document: Nil
- (b) Online Bid Submission Starting date &time:25.01.2022; 10:00 HRS
- (c) Online Bid Submission Closing date & time: 02.03.2022; 15:00 HRS
- (d) Last date and time of receipt of relevant document as mentioned (IFB) by SpeedPost/Courier/by hand: 02.03.2022; 15:00 HRS
- (e) Time and date of : 02.03.2022; 16:00 HRS opening of bids

For submission of the bids, the bidder is required to have Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) from one of the authorized Certifying Authorities, authorised by Government of India for issuing DSC. Aspiring bidders who have not obtained the user ID and password for participating in e-procurement in this Project, may obtain the same from the **website:www.wbtenders.gov.in**

- Bids security of the amount specified in the bidding document, drawn in favour of The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division, I&W Department Address: Purta Bhavan, 3rd Floor, submitted as per be Bardhaman, 713103, WEST BENGAL procedure described in paragraph 7 below. The Bid security will have to be in any one of the forms as specified in the bidding document and shall have to be valid for 45 days beyond the original validity period of the bids. Bids must be submitted online on www.wbtenders.gov.inon or before the date and time for receipt of bids, and will be opened online on the specified time and date for opening of bids, as given above. Any bid or modifications to bid (including discount) received outside e-procurement system will not be considered. If the office happens to be closed on the date of opening of the bids as specified, the bids will be opened on the next working day at the same time. The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids.
- 7. The bidders are required to submit (a) original power of attorney (b) original bid security in approved form; and (c) original affidavit regarding correctness of information furnished with bid document with The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division, I&W Departmentbefore the opening of the Bid given above, either by registered post/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened.
- 8. Other details can be seen in the bidding document. The Purchaser shall not be held liable for any delays due to system failure beyond its control. Even though the system will attempt to notify the bidders of any bid updates, the Purchaser shall not be liable for any information not received by the bidder. It is the bidders' responsibility to verify the website for the latest information related to this bid.

Seal of Office & Address

O/o The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Inv. & Planning Division, I&W Department, Purta Bhavan, 3rd Floor, Purba Bardhaman, 713103, WEST BENGAL
E mail: eebipd2012@gmail.com
Tel: 0342 2646799

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES	2-6
SECTION I – Instructions to Bidders [ITB]	2-7
SECTION II – BIDDING DATA SHEET	
SECTION III. EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA	42
SECTION IV – BIDDING FORMS	47
SECTION V. – ELIGIBLE COUNTRIES	65
SECTION VI. BANK POLICY – CORRUPT AND FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	66
PART 2 – SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS	69
SECTION VII – SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS	70
PART 3 – CONTRACT	88
SECTION VIII – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	89
SECTION IX. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	109
SECTION X – CONTRACT FORMS	119

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES

SECTION I – Instructions to Bidders [ITB]

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

A. GE	ENERA	${f L}$	11
	1.	SCOPE OF BID	11
	2.	SOURCE OF FUNDS	11
	3.	CORRUPT & FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	
	4.	Eligible Bidders	
	5.	ELIGIBLE GOODS AND RELATED SERVICES	
B. CO	NTEN'	TS OF BIDDING DOCUMENT	
	6.	SECTIONS OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS	
	7.	CLARIFICATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS	
	8.	AMENDMENT OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS	
C. PR	EPAR	ATION OF BIDS	16
	9.	COST OF BIDDING	
	10.	Language of Bid	
	11.	DOCUMENTS COMPRISING THE BID	
	12.	PROCESS OF BID SUBMISSION	18
	13.	ALTERNATIVE BIDS	
	14.	BID PRICES AND DISCOUNTS	
	15.	CURRENCIES OF BID& PAYMENT	20
	16.	DOCUMENTS ESTABLISHING THE ELIGIBILITY AND CONFORMITY OF THE GOODS	
	AND R	ELATED SERVICES	21
	17.	DOCUMENTS ESTABLISHING THE ELIGIBILITY &QUALIFICATIONS OF THE	
	BIDDE	ZR	
	18	PERIOD OF VALIDITY OF BIDS	
	19	BID SECURITY	
	20	FORMAT AND SIGNING OF BID	
D. ON	ILINE	SUBMISSION AND OPENING OF BIDS	
	21	PREPARATION OF BIDS	
	22	DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF BIDS	
	23	Late Bids	
	24	WITHDRAWAL, SUBSTITUTION, AND MODIFICATION OF BIDS	
E. PU		OPENING OF TECHNICAL PARTS OF BIDS	-
	25	PUBLIC OPENING OF TECHNICAL PARTS OF BIDS	
F. EV.		TION OF BIDS- GENERAL PROVISIONS	
	26	CONFIDENTIALITY	
	27	CLARIFICATION OF BIDS.	
	28	DEVIATIONS, RESERVATIONS, OMISSIONS	
	29	NONCONFORMITIES, ERRORS, AND OMISSIONS	
G. EV		TION OF TECHNICAL PARTS OF BIDS	
	30	EVALUATION OF TECHNICAL PARTS	
	31	DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIVENESS	28

	32	QUALIFICATION OF THE BIDDERS	29
H. PU	BLIC C	OPENING OF FINANCIAL PARTS OF BIDS	
	33	PUBLIC OPENING OF FINANCIAL PARTS OF BIDS	30
I. EVA	LUAT	ION OF FINANCIAL PARTS OF BIDS	31
	34	EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL PARTS	31
	35	CORRECTION OF ARITHMETICAL ERRORS	32
	36	CONVERSION TO SINGLE CURRENCY	
	37	MARGIN OF DOMESTIC PREFERENCE	33
	38	COMPARISIONS OF FINANCIAL PARTS	33
	39	PURCHASERS RIGHT TO ACCEPT ANY BID, AND TO REJECT ANY OR ALL BIDS	33
J. AW	ARD O	OF CONTRACT	33
	38	AWARD CRITERIA	33
	39	PURCHASER'S RIGHT TO VARY QUANTITIES AT TIME OF AWARD	33
	40	NOTIFICATION OF AWARD	
	PUBLIC	CATION OF AWARD	33
	RECOU	RSE TO UNSUCCESSFUL BIDDERS	34
	41	SIGNING OF CONTRACT	34
	42	PERFORMANCE SECURITY	34

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

A. General

1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 The Purchaser indicated in the Bidding Data Sheet (BDS), issues these Bidding Documents for the supply of Goods and Related Services incidental thereto as specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this National Competitive Bidding (NCB) procurement are specified in the BDS.
- 1.2 Throughout these Bidding Documents:
- (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, telex, including if **specified in the BDS**, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Employer) with proof of receipt;
- (b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
- (c) "day" means calendar day.

2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The Government of India (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (hereinafter called "the Bank") in an amount specified in BDS toward the project named in the BDS. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which these Bidding Documents are issued.
- 2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with terms and conditions of the Loan The Loan financing)Agreement. (or other Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the loan or other financing) account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import, to the knowledge of the Bank, is prohibited by decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other

financing) Agreement or have any claim to the funds.

3. Corrupt & Fraudulent Practices

- 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI.
- 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause its agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers and to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to the submission of the application, bid submission (in case prequalified), and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

4. Eligible Bidders

- 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, or a government owned entity subject to ITB 4.5.
- 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this bidding process, if the Bidder:
 - a. directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
 - b. receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
 - c. has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
 - d. has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding this bidding process; or
 - e. participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one bid; or
 - f. any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the goods/equipment that are the subject of the bid; or
 - g. any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired)
 by the Purchaser or Borrower for the Contract implementation; or
 - would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any of its affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by,

- or is under common control with that firm; or
- i. has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding documents or specifications of the contract, and/or the bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract.
- 4.3 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.7. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed sub-contractors or sub-consultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
- 4.4 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank in accordance with the above ITB 3.1, including in accordance with the Bank's Guidelines on Preventing and Combating Corruption in Projects Financed by IBRD Loans and IDA Credits and Grants ("Anti-Corruption Guidelines"), shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, bid for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address specified in the BDS.
- 4.5 Bidders that are Government-owned enterprises or institutions in the Purchaser's Country may participate only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous (ii) operate under commercial law, and (iii) are not dependent agencies of the Purchaser. To be eligible, a government-owned enterprise or institution shall establish to the Bank's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information the Bank may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from the government (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to the government, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for

repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt; and (iv) is not bidding for a contract to be awarded by the department or agency of the government which under their applicable laws or regulations is the reporting or supervisory authority of the enterprise or has the ability to exercise influence or control over the enterprise or institution.

- 4.6 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Purchaser as the result of the operation of a Bid–Securing Declaration.
- 4.7 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 4.8 A bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.
- 5. Eligible Goods and Related Services
- 5.1 All the Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank may have their origin in any country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries.
- 5.2 For purposes of this Clause, the term "goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "related services" includes services such as insurance, installation, training, and initial maintenance.
- 5.3 The term "origin" means the country where the goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed; or, through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

B. Contents of Bidding Document

- 6. Sections of Bidding Documents
- 6.1 The Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addendum issued in accordance with ITB Clause 8.

PART 1 Bidding Procedures

- Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV. Bidding Forms
- Section V. Eligible Countries
- Section VI Bank Policy-Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

PART 2 Supply Requirements

• Section VII. Schedule of Requirements

PART 3 Contract

- Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
- Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section X. Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Purchaser is not part of the Bidding Document.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Purchaser, the Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, minutes of pre-bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Purchaser shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents.
- 7. Clarification of Bidding Documents
- 7.1 The electronic bidding system **specified in the BDS** provides for online clarifications. A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification on the Bidding Documents may notify the Purchaser online. Clarifications requested through any other mode shall not be considered by the Purchaser. The Purchaser will respond to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. Description of clarification

sought and the response of the Purchaser shall be uploaded for information of all Bidders without identifying the source of request for clarification. Should the Purchaser deem it necessary to amend the Bidding Documents as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under ITB Clause 8 and ITB Sub-Clause 22.2. It is the bidder's responsibility to check on the e-procurement system, for any addendum/ amendment/ corrigendum to the bidding document.

8. Amendment of Bidding Documents

- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Purchaser may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing addendum. The addendum will appear on the e-procurement system under "Latest Corrigendum" and email notification is also automatically sent to those bidders who have started working on the tender, or as **otherwise specified in BDS**.
- 8.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and shall be deemed to have been communicated to all the bidders.
- 8.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to ITB Sub-Clause 22.2

C. Preparation of Bids

9. Cost of Bidding

9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

10. Language of Bid

10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in English language. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into English language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

11. Documents Comprising the Bid

11.1 The Bid shall comprise two Parts, namely the Technical Part and the Financial Part. These two Parts shall be submitted simultaneously.

11.2 The Technical Part shall contain the following:

(a) Letter of Bid – Technical Part, in accordance with ITB

- Clause 12;
- (b) Bid Security, in accordance with ITB Clause 19.1, if required;
- (c) Alternative bids— Technical Part,ifpermissible,inaccordance with ITB 13, the Technical Part of any Alternative Bid;
- (d) written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB Clause 20.2;
- (e) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clause 17 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted;
- (f) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to bid;
- (g) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clause 16, that the Goods and Related Services to be supplied by the Bidder are of eligible origin;
- (h) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clauses 16, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the Bidding Documents;
- (i) Manufacturer's authorization form; and
- (j) any other document required in the BDS.
- 11.3 The **Financial Part** shall contain the following:
 - (a) Letter of Bid Financial Part: prepared in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14;
 - (b) Price Schedules: completed prepared in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14:
 - (c) Alternative Bid Financial Part; if permissible in accordance with ITB 13, the Financial Part of any Alternative Bid; and
 - (d) any other document **required** in the BDS.
- 11.4 The Technical Part shall not include any financial information related to the Bid price. Where material financial information related to the Bid price is contained in the Technical Part, the Bid shall be declared non-responsive.
- 11.5 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid, information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or

any other party relating to this Bid.

12. Process of Bid Submission

- 12.1 The Letter of Bid and Price Schedules shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.2. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 12.2 Entire Bid including the Letter of Bid and filled-up Price Schedules shall be submitted online on e-procurement system specified in ITB 7.1. Details and process of online submission of the tender and relevant documents are given in the website mentioned above. Scanned copies of documents listed in clauses 11 and 12.3 should also be uploaded on this website.
- 12.3 Submission of Original Documents: The bidders are required to separately submit (i)original power of attorney; (ii)original bid security in approved form; and (iii)original affidavit regarding correctness of information furnished with bid document, with the office specified in the BDS, before the opening of the Bid, either by registered/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. Hard copy of rest of the bid is not to be submitted.

13. Alternative Bids

13.1 Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, alternative bids shall not be considered.

14. Bid Prices and Discounts

- 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.
- 14.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Price Schedules.
- 14.3 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid, in accordance with ITB 12.1, shall be the total price of the bid, excluding any discounts offered.
- 14.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 12.1.
- 14.5 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, **unless otherwise specified in the BDS.** A bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as nonresponsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITB 29.

However, if in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a bid submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.

- 14.6 If so specified in ITB 1.1, bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, prices quoted shall correspond to 100 % of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4 provided the bids for all lots (contracts) are submitted and opened at the same time.
- 14.7 The terms EXW and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms, published by The International Chamber of Commerce, as specified in the BDS.
- 14.8 Prices shall be quoted as specified in the Price Schedule included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The dis-aggregation of price components is required solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids by the Purchaser. This shall not in any way limit the Purchaser's right to contract on any of the terms offered. In quoting prices, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country, in accordance with Section V Eligible Countries. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible country in accordance with Section V Eligible Countries. Prices shall be entered in the following manner:

(a) For Goods:

- (i) the price of the Goods quoted EXW (ex-works, exfactory, ex-warehouse, ex-showroom, or off-theshelf, as applicable), including all duties, and GST and other taxes already paid or payable on the components and raw material used in the manufacture or assembly of the Goods;
 - (ii) any GST and other taxes which will be payable in India on the Goods, if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
 - (iii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and

other local services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (Project Site) **specified in the BDS.**

- (b) for the Related Services, other than inland transportation and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination, whenever such Related Services are specified in the Schedule of Requirements:
 - (i) the price of each item comprising the Related Services (inclusive of any applicable taxes).

14.9 **Deemed Export Benefits**

Bidders may like to ascertain availability of tax/duty exemption benefits, available for contracts financed under World Bank Credits/ Loans. They are solely responsible for obtaining such benefits, which they have considered in their bid and in case of failure to receive such benefits for reasons whatsoever, the Purchaser will not compensate the bidder.

Where the bidder has quoted taking into account such benefits, it must give all information required for issue of necessary Certificates in terms of the Government of India's relevant Notification along with its bid as perform stipulated in Section IV Bidding Forms. Where the Purchaser issues such Certificates, such taxes and duties will not be reimbursed separately.

If the Bidder has considered the Deemed Export Benefits in its bid, the Bidder shall confirm and certify that the Purchaser will not be required to undertake any responsibilities of the deemed export scheme or the benefits available during contract execution except issuing the required certificates. Bids which do not conform to this provision or any condition by the Bidder which makes the bid subject to availability of deemed export benefits or compensation on withdrawal of or any variations in the deemed export benefits scheme will make the bid non responsive and hence liable to rejection.

15. Currencies of Bid& Payment

15.1 The Bidder shall quote the Price in Indian Rupees only.

- 16. Documents
 Establishing the
 Eligibility and
 conformity of the
 Goods and
 Related Services
- 16.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with ITB Clause 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.3 The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Section VII Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.4 The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period **specified in the BDS** following commencement of the use of the goods by the Purchaser.
- 16.5 Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to the Purchaser's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII Schedule of Requirements.
- 17. Documents
 Establishing the
 Eligibility
 &Qualifications
 of the Bidder
- 17.1 To establish Bidder's eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 17.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Purchaser's satisfaction:
 - (a) that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion

Criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Oualification;

- (b) (i) that, if **required in the BDS**, a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the Manufacturer's Authorization using the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser's Country;
 - (ii) Supplies for any particular item in each schedule of the bid should be from one manufacturer only. Bids from agents offering supplies from different manufacturers for the same item of the schedule in the bid will be treated as non-responsive.
 - (iii) that, if **required in the BDS**, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier's maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications;
- (c) Bids from Joint Ventures are not acceptable.

18 Period of Validity of Bids

- 18.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period **specified in the BDS** after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 22.1. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
- 18.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Purchaser may request bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB Clause 19, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 18.3.
- 18.3 If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
 - (a) In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the bid price adjusted by the factor **specified in the**

BDS for each week or part of the week that has elapsed from the expiration of the initial bid validity to the date of notification of award to the successful bidder.

- (b) In the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made.
- (c) In any case, bid evaluation shall be based on the bid Price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.

19 Bid Security

19.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, a Bid Security, if required, as **specified in the BDS**.

Not used 19.3 The Bid Security shall be in the amount **specified in the BDS** and denominated in Indian Rupees or a freely convertible currency, and shall:

- (a) at the bidder's option, be in the form of either a certified check, demand draft, letter of credit, or a bank guarantee from a Nationalized /Scheduled Bank in India, or another security specified in the BDS;
- (b) be substantially in accordance with one of the forms of Bid Security included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or other form approved by the Purchaser prior to bid submission;
- (c) be payable promptly upon written demand by the Purchaser in case the conditions listed in ITB Clause 19.7 are invoked;
- (d) be submitted in its original form; copies will not be accepted;
- (e) remain valid for a period of 45 days beyond the original validity period of the bids, or beyond any period of extension of bid validity, if so requested under ITB Clause 18.2.
- 19.4 If a Bid Security is required in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
- 19.5 The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB Clause 42.

- 19.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the contract and furnished the required performance security.
- 19.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited:
- (a) if a Bidder
 - (i) withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid, except as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 18.2;

or

(ii) does not accept the correction of errors in pursuant to ITB 35.

or

- b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB Clause 43; or
 - (ii) furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB Clause 44.
- 19.8 Not used.
- 19.9 If a bid security is **not required in the BDS**, and
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid Form, except as provided in ITB 18.2, or does not accept the correction of errors pursuant to ITB 31; or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42;

the Borrower may, **if provided for in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Purchaser for a period of time **as stated in the BDS**.

20 Format and Signing of Bid

- 20.1 The Bidder shall prepare the Bid as per details given in ITB 21.
- 20.2 The bid shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. The authorization shall consist of a written confirmation **as specified in the BDS** and shall be uploaded along with the bid.
- 20.3 Not used.
- 20.4 Corrections if any in the bid can be carried out by editing the

D. Online Submission of Bids

21 Preparation of Bids

- 21.1Bids, both Technical and Financial Parts, shall be submitted online on the e-procurement system specified in BDS 7.1. Detailed guidelines for viewing bids and submission of online bids are given on the website. The Invitation for Bids under this Project is published on this website. Any citizen or prospective bidder can logon to this website and view the Invitation for Bids and can view the details of goods for which bids are invited. A prospective bidder can submit its bid online; however, the bidder is required to have enrolment/registration in the website, and should have valid Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) in the form of smart card/e-token obtained from any authorised certifying agencyof Government of India (for class of DSC specified in BDS). The bidder should register in the website using the relevant option available. Then the Digital Signature registration has to be done with the e-token, after logging into the website. The bidder can then login the website through the secured login by entering the password of the e-token & the user id/ password chosen during registration. After getting the bid schedules, the Bidder should go through them carefully and submit the specified documents, alongwith the bid, otherwise the bid will be rejected.
- 21.2The completed bid comprising of documents indicated in ITB 12, should be uploaded on the e-procurement portal along with scanned copies of requisite certificates as are mentioned in different sections in the bidding document and scanned copy of the bid security.
- **21.3**All the documents are required to be signed digitally by the bidder. After electronic on line bid submission, the system generates a unique bid identification number which is time stamped as per server time. This shall be treated as acknowledgement of bid submission.
- 21.4 Physical, Email, Telex, Cable or Facsimile bids will be rejected as non-responsive.

22 Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 22.1 Bids must be uploaded online no later than the date and time specified in the BDS.
- 22.2 The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Documents in

accordance with ITB Clause 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

- 23 Late Bids
- 23.1 The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids after due date & time as per server time.
- 24 Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids
- 24.1Bidders may modify their bids by using appropriate option for bid modification on the e-procurement portal, before the deadline for submission of bids. For this the bidder need not make any additional payment towards the cost of bid document. For bid modification and consequential re-submission, the bidder is not required to withdraw his bid submitted earlier. The last modified bid submitted by the bidder within the bid submission time shall considered the hid For this he as purpose, modification/withdrawal by other means will not be accepted. In online system of bid submission, the modification and consequential re-submission of bids is allowed any number of times. A bidder may withdraw his bid by using appropriate option for bid withdrawal, before the deadline for submission of bids, however, if the bid is withdrawn, re-submission of the bid is not allowed.
- 24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 24.1 shall not be opened.
- 24.3 No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.

E.Public Opening of Technical Parts of Bids

25 PublicOpening of Technical Parts of Bids

25.1The Purchaser shall publicly open Technical Parts of all bids received by the deadline, at the date, time and place specified in theBDS, in the presence of Bidder's designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. The Financial Parts of the bids shall remain unopened in the e-procurement system, until the subsequent public opening, following the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids. In all cases, original documents submitted as specified in ITB 12.3 shall be first scrutinized, and Bids that do not comply with the provisions of ITB 12.3 will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. Thereafter, bidder's names, and such other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate will be notified online as Technical Part bid

opening summary.

In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a holiday for the Purchaser, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day.

25.2The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Purchaser will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Bids, alternative bids if permitted in ITB 13, and discounts that are opened at Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.

F. Evaluation of Bids – General Provisions

26 Confidentiality

- 26.1 Information relating to the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of bids, and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until information on Contract Award is communicated to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 40.
- 26.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of the bids or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 26.3 Notwithstanding ITB Sub-Clause 26.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.

27 Clarification of Bids

- 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison of the bids and post-qualification of the Bidders, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid, that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Purchaser in the Evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB Clause 31.
- 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the Purchaser's request for clarification, its bid may be rejected.

28 Deviations, Reservations, Omissions

- (a) During the evaluation of bids, the following definitions apply:
- (b) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents;
- (c) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and
- (d) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Documents

29 Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions

- **29.1**Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive any nonconformities or omissions in the Bid which do not constitute a material deviation, reservation or omission.
- 29.2 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price or substance of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 29.3Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component in the manner specified in the BDS.

G. Evaluation of Technical Parts of Bids

30 Evaluation of Technical Parts

30.1 In evaluating the Technical Parts of each Bid, the Purchaser shall use the comethodologies listed in ITB 31, ITB 32, and Section III, Evaluation and Qualification No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.

31 Determination of Responsiveness

The Purchaser's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself as defined in ITB 31.

31.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:

If accepted, would

- (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Goods and Related Services specified in the Contract; or
- (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
- (b) if rectified would unfairly affect the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 31.2.1 Bids from Agents, without proper authorization from the manufacturer as per Section IV, shall be treated as non-responsive.
- 31.3.1 The Purchaser shall examine the bids to confirm that all documents and technical documentation requested in ITB Clause 11 have been provided, and to determine the completeness of each document submitted.
- 31.3.2 The Purchaser shall examine the bid to confirm that the Bidder has accepted all terms and conditions specified in GCC and the SCC without material deviations or reservations. Deviations from or objections or reservations to critical provisions such as those concerning Performance Security (GCC Clause 18). Warranty (GCC Clause 28), Force Majeure (Clause 32), Limitation of liability (GCC Clause 30), Governing law (GCC Clause 9) and Taxes & Duties (GCC Clause 17) will be deemed to be a material deviation. The Purchaser's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself without recourse to extrinsic evidence.
- 31.4 If a bid is not substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

32 Qualification of the Bidders

32.1The Purchaser shall determine, to its satisfaction, whether all eligible Bidders, whose Bids have been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding document, meet the Qualification Criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and

Qualification Criteria.

- 32.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17. The determination shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Bidder's subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors (other than specialized subcontractors if permitted in the bidding document), or any other firm(s) different from the Bidder.
- **32.3**If a Bidder does not meet the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, its Bid shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- **32.4**Only Bids that are both substantially responsive to the bidding document, and meet all Qualification Criteria shall have the Financial Parts of their Bids opened at the second public opening

H- Public Opening of Financial Parts of Bids

33 Public Opening of Financial Parts

- Parts of the Bids, and the Bank has issued its no objection (if applicable), the Purchaser shall notify in writing those Bidders who have failed to meet the Qualification Criteria and/or whose Bids were considered non-responsive to the requirements in the bidding document, advising them of the following information:
 - (a) their Technical Part of Bid failed to meet the requirements of the bidding document;
 - (b) their Financial Part of the Bid shall not be opened; and
 - (c) notify them of the date and time for public opening of the Financial Parts of the Bids. Financial Parts of the bids shall not be opened earlier than seven (7) days from the communication of technical evaluation results to the bidders.
- 33.2 The Purchaser shall, simultaneously, notify in writing those Bidders whose Technical Parts have been evaluated as substantially responsive to the bidding document and met the Qualification Criteria, advising them of the following

information:

- (a) their Bid has been evaluated as substantially responsive to the bidding document and met the Qualification Criteria;
- (b) their Financial Part of Bid will be opened at the public opening of Financial Parts;
- (c) notify them of the date and time of the second public opening of the Financial Parts of the Bids, as **specified in** the BDS.
- 33.3 The opening date should allow Bidders sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the opening. The Financial Part of the Bid shall be opened publicly in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. The bidder's names, the Bid prices, the total amount of each bid, including any discounts and Alternative Bid Financial Part, and such other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate will be notified online by the Purchaser at the time of bid opening.

In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a holiday for the Purchaser, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day.

33.4 The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Purchaser will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Financial Part of Bids, Financial Parts of Alternative Bids and discounts that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.

I. Evaluation of Financial Parts of Bids

34 Evaluation of Financial Parts

- 34.1 To evaluate the Financial Part of each Bid, the Purchaser shall consider the following:
 - (a) evaluation will be done for Items or Lots (contracts), as specified **in the BDS**; and the Bid Price as quoted in accordance with ITB 14;
 - (b) Not used;
 - (c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.4;

- (d) Not used;
- (e) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 29.3; and
- (f) the additional evaluation factors specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 34.2 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 34.3 If this bidding document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated cost of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of B-d Financial Part, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 34.4 The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid will exclude and not take into account:
 - (a) in the case of Goods manufactured in India or goods of foreign origin already located in India, GST and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder;
 - (b) Not used;
 - (c) any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the Bid.
- 34.5 The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid price quoted in accordance with ITB 14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance, and terms and conditions of purchase of the Goods and Related Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of Bids, unless otherwise specified in the BDS from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The criteria and methodologies to be used shall be as specified in ITB 34.1 (f).
- 35 Correction of Arithmetical Errors
- 36 Conversion to Single
- 35.1 The e-procurement system automatically calculates the total amount from unit rates and quantities and the system also automatically populates the amount in words from the amount in figures and therefore there is no scope of discrepancy and need for arithmetic correction.

Currency

36.1 Not applicable.

37 Margin of Domestic Preference

37.1 Not applicable.

38 Comparison of Financial Parts

38.1 The Purchaser shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially responsive bids to determine the lowest-evaluated bid, in accordance with ITB Clause 34.

39Purchaser's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids

39.1 The Purchaser reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all documents submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

J. Award of Contract

40 Award Criteria

40.1 Subject to ITB 39.1, the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

41.Purchaser's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award

41.1At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages specified in the BDS, and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the bid and the Bidding Documents.

42 Notification of

Award

42.1Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Purchaser shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter called "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the purchaser will pay in consideration of the supply of Goods (hereinafter called "the Contract Price").

Publication of

42.2 At the same time the Purchaser shall publish in a National website (GOI web si-e - www.wbtenders.gov.inor

Award

Recourse to Unsuccessful Bidders

on the Purchaser's website with free access if available, or in the official gazette, the results identifying the bid and lot numbers and the following information: (i) name of each Bidder who submitted a Bid; (ii) bid prices as read out at bid opening; (iii) name and evaluated prices of each Bid that was evaluated; (iv) name of bidders whose bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection; and (v) name of the successful Bidder, and the price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the contract awarded.

- 42.3 The Purchaser shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after Publication of contract award, requests in writing the grounds on which its bid was not selected.
- 42.4Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 42.5Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the performance security and signing the Contract Form pursuant to ITB Clause 42, the Purchaser will promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder and will discharge its bid security, pursuant to ITB Clause 19.5

43. Signing of Contract

- 43.1Promptly after notification, the Purchaser shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.
- 43.2 Within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Purchaser.

44. Performance Security

44.1 Within twenty one **(21) days** of the receipt of notification of award from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X Contract forms, or another Form acceptable to the Purchaser. Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder, whose bid is substantially responsive and is determined by the Purchaser to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

SECTION -I - BIDDING DATA SHEET

The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

ITB Clause Reference	A. General
ITB 1.1	The Purchaser is: The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division I&W
ITB 1.1	Department, Govt of West Bengal The name and identification number of the NCB is: "PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"
	(Bid No: WBIW/NHP/IFB-17/2021-22)
	The number, identification and names of the (contracts): (one) lot.
ITB 1.2(a)	The Purchaser shall use the electronic-procurement system specified in BDS 7.1 to manage this Bidding process.
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Government of India (i) Loan Agreement Amount: US\$ 175 million (ii) Loan no: 8725-IN
ITB 2.1	The name of the Project is: National Hydrology Project.
ITB 4.4	A list of firms debarred from participating in World Bank projects is available at http://www.worldbank.org/debarr

	B. Contents of Bidding Documents
ITB 7.1	Electronic -Procurement System
	The Purchaser shall use the following electronic-procurement system to manage this Bidding process:
	www.wbtenders.gov.in
ITB 7.1a	A Pre-bid meeting shall be held shall be held at the following date ,time and
	place to clarify issues with respect to the bidding document:
	Date: 07.02.2022
	Time:11:30 hrs
	Place: The Superintending Engineer, Investigation & Planning Circle-II, Jalasampad Bhawan 5th Floor, Block-DF, Sect-r - I, Salt Lake City, Kolkata-700 091,
	Phone : +91332358716
	Contact Person: Sri ,Tridib Ranjan Barua, Superintending Engineer
	Sri Manas Khan, Executive Engineer
ITB 8.1	The addendum will appear on the e-procurement system under latest corrigendum and email notification is also automatically sent to those bidders who have started working on this tender.
	C. Preparation of Bids
ITB 11.1(j)	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its bid:
	1. Certification of incorporation of the bidder and manufacturer
	2. The bidder shall clearly confirm that all facilities exist with him (or manufacturer, as applicable) in his factory for inspection and testing and these can be accessed by the Purchaser or his representative for inspection.
	3. Technical schedules of goods as required by technical specifications.
	4. Descriptive Documents, drawings, notes and references of operating and assembly of mechanical parts
	A detailed description of the Goods essential technical and performance characteristics. 5. A clause-by-clause commentary on the Purchaser's technical specifications demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Services to those specifications or a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Technical Specification

	6. For purposes of the commentary to be furnished pursuant to Paragraph 6 above, the Bidder shall note that standards for workmanship, material and goods, and references to brand names or catalogue numbers designated by the Purchaser in its Technical Specifications are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may substitute alternative standards, brand names and/or catalogue numbers in its bid, provided that it demonstrates to the purchaser's satisfaction that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence to those designated in the Technical Specifications.
	The documentary evidence of the goods and services eligibility shall consist of a statement in the Price Schedule on the country of origin of the goods and services offered which shall be confirmed by a certificate of origin at the time of shipment
	Non-manufacturer bidders will submit the manufacturer's authorization Form as per proforma in Section IV.
	The following details shall also be provided by Indian Bidder a. Name, address, PAN and ward/circle where they are being assessed of the Directors of the Bidding Company.
	b. Company's PAN and Income Tax clearance certificate and ward/circle where it is being assessed,
	c. Registration details of the company under GST and other laws as may be applicable.
	d. The bidders from outside India shall provide the corresponding details of Income Tax registration, Social Security Number, details regarding Registration under goods & services tax (as may be applicable) etc.
	8. The bidder shall disclose instance of previous past performance that may have resulted into adverse actions taken against the bidder during the last five years.9. All document required in Section 3: Evaluation & Qualification Criteria.
ITB 11.3(a)	Note for Bidders: Bidders have to submit filled format of 'Letter of Bid-Financial Part' in 'Financial Folder' only.
ITB 11.3 (d)	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its bid – financial part: <i>None</i>
ITB 12	Note for Bidders: Bidders have to submit the bids on the e-procurement portal along with the relevant required documents. For this purpose, the bidders shall fill up online, the forms that are available for online filling on the e-portal. The rest of the forms shall be download by the bidders and filled up. The filled up pages shall then be scanned and uploaded on the e-procurement portal along

	with the scanned copies of the supporting documents.
ITB 12.3	For submission of original documents, the Purchaser's address is: Executive Engineer, Burdwan I & P Division, Purta Bhavan, 3 rd Floor Purba Bardhaman, 713103, WEST BENGAL. E mail: eebipd2012@gmail.com Tel: 0342 2646799
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.
ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the Bidder <i>shall not</i> be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.
ITB 14.7	The Inco terms edition is Inco terms 2010 or higher.
ITB 14.8 (a) (iii)	"Final destination (Project Site)": as mentioned in Schedule of Requirements.
ITB 14.9	As per latest instructions from Government of India.
ITB 16.4	Period of time the Goods are expected to be functioning (for the purpose of spare parts): a minimum period of 10 years after commissioning).
ITB 17.2 (b) (i)	Manufacturer's authorization is: required as per proforma in Section IV.
ITB 17.2 (b)iii	After Sales service is required which shall be provided by the Supplier or alternatively by its Agent in case of a foreign bidder.
ITB 18.1	The bid validity period shall be 90 days.
ITB 18.3(A)	The factor will be 1.0007692 per week(multiplicative)
ITB 19.1	Bids shall include a Bid Security (issued by bank) included in Section IV Bidding Forms.
ITB 19.3	The amount of the Bid Security shall be: Rs.160000 /-inthe form of either Bank Guarantee form issued by any nationalized bank/scheduled bank or NSC (present issue) by post office or post office Time Deposit (TD) within the West Bengal state (valid for 45 days beyond the original validity period of the bid) pledged duly in the name of <i>The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division I&W Department, Govt of West Bengal</i> .
ITB 19.3 (a)	Other types of acceptable securities are: None
ITB 19.9	Omitted

ITB 20.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of:
	1. Original Power of Attorney; 2. Original affidavit vouching for the correctness of the information furnished and documents uploaded
	D. Online Submission and Opening of Bids
ITB 21.1	Class of DSC required is: Class 2 with Signing Certificate
ITB 21	The Envelope for submitting Document as per ITB 12.3 shall bear the following: ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS AS PER CLAUSE 12.3 for IFB No.(WBIW/NHP/IFB-17/2021-22) for
	"PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"
	The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division I&W Department, Govt of West Bengal E mail: eebipd2012@gmail.com Tel: 0342 2646799
ITB 22.1	The deadline for uploading of bids is: Date: 02.03.2022 Time: 15.00 HRS
ITB 24.1	Re-submission of the bid is not allowed if withdrawn.
	E. Public Opening of Technical Parts
ITB 25.1	The online bid opening shall take place at: Office of the Superintending Engineer, Investigation & Planning Circle-II, JalasampadBhawan, 5th Floor, Block-DF, Sector - I, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700 091
	Date:02.03.2022 Time: 16:00 HRS
	F. Evaluation of Bids – General Provisions
ITB 29.3	The adjustment shall be based on the highest price of the item or component as quoted in other substantially responsive Bids, subject to a maximum of the estimated price of the item. If the price of the item or component cannot be derived from the price of other substantially responsive Bids, the Purchaser shall use its best estimate.

	H. Public Opening of Financial Parts										
ITB 33.2 (c)	Following the completion of the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids, the Purchaser will notify all Bidders of the date and time of the public opening of Financial Parts.										
	The online opening of the Financial Parts of bids (for technically qualified bidders) shall take place at:										
	Office of the Superintending Engineer, Investigation & Planning Circle-II, Jalasampad Bhawan, 5th Floor, Block-DF, Sector - I, Salt Lake City, Kolkata-700091Telephone: +91332358716 Date: [to be notified later] Time: [to be notified later]										
	I. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids										
ITB 34.1(a)	Evaluation will be done for whole lot in one package										
ITB 34.3	Not Applicable.										
ITB 34.4	The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid will exclude and not take into account:										
	(a) In the case of Goods manufactured in India or goods of foreign origin already located in India, GST and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder;										
	(b) Not Used.										
	(c) any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the bid.										
	But, the purchaser's evaluation of a bid will include i) price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their Final Destination; and (ii) price for Related Services, if any										
ITB 34.5	The adjustments shall be determined using the following criteria, from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:										
	(a) Deviation in Delivery schedule: Not Applicable										
	(b) Deviation in payment schedule: Not Applicable										
	(c) the cost of major replacement components, mandatory spare parts, and service: <i>Not Applicable</i> '										
	(d) the availability in the Purchaser's Country of spare parts and after-sales services for the equipment offered in the bid <i>Not</i>										

	Applicable
	(e) the projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the equipment 'Not Applicable'
	(f) the performance and productivity of the equipment offered; 'Not Applicable
	(g) The cost of 3 years comprehensive AMC after expiry of Warranty period of 2 years beyond testing and commissioning by applying a discount factor of 10%.
	J. Award of Contract
	The maximum percentage by which quantities may be increased is: 15%
	The maximum percentage by which quantities may be increased is: 15% The maximum percentage by which quantities may be decreased is: 15%
1	
1. ITB 41.1	

SECTION III. EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA

This Section complements the Instructions to Bidders. It contains the criteria that the Purchaser shall use to evaluate a bid and determine whether a Bidder qualifies in accordance with ITB 34 &32. No other criteria shall be used.

TECHNICAL PART

1Qualification (ITB 32)

1.1 Qualification Criteria (ITB 32.1)

The Purchaser shall assess each Bid against the following Qualification Criteria. Requirements not included in the text below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications.

I- Financial Capability

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence that it meets the following financial requirement(s):

- i) The Minimum required annual turnover in respect of supply, installation and commissioning of goods and services for the successful Bidder in any two of the last five (5) years shall be of **INR 80.00 Lakhor** its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency. Period of 5 years shall be reckoned from 31st march of financial year preceding the year in which bid is published.
- ii) Further, bidder should be in continuous business of supplying and/or after sale services of products similar to that specified in the 'Schedule of requirement' during the last 5 years prior to date of bid submission.
- iii) Bidder shall furnish the legal status, place of registration and principal place of business of the company or firm or partnership, etc.;
- iv) Details of experience and past performance on equipment offered and on those of similar nature within the past seven years (Prior to the date of bid submission) and details of current contracts in hand and other commitments (suggested Proforma given in Section IV)to be submitted by the bidder.
- v) The bidder should furnish a brief write-up, backed with adequate data, explaining his available capacity and experience (both technical and commercial) for the supply of the required equipment within the specified time of completion after the meeting all their current commitments.
- vi) Reports on financial standing of the bidder such as profit and loss statements, balance sheets and auditor's report for the past three years, banker's certificate, etc.
- vii) A firm can submit only one bid in the same bidding process. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid will cause all the bids in which the bidder has participated to be disqualified.
- viii) Should possess GST Registration.

II- Experience and Technical Capacity of Bidder

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that it meets the following experience requirement(s):

i) DGPS Operational experience

The bidder must have supplied, tested, operated and maintained the RTK DGPS similar to the type specified in the "Section – VII Schedule of Requirements" to the extent of at least 3 Nos of DGPS in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document and should be in use satisfactorily with no adverse report for at least one year preceding the date of bid opening.

ii) Manufacturer Authorization for DGPS

If the bidder is not the manufacturer of the DGPS equipment (i.e. listed in table-1), the bidder shall furnish a legally enforceable authorization from manufacturer in the prescribed Form [Section-IV] assuring full guarantee and warranty obligations as per GCC and SCC for the goods offered;

If the bidder, himself is a manufacturer of the DGPS equipment (listed in Table-1), then a self-authorization suffices.

Further, bidder should furnish the documentary evidence from the manufacturer of the DGPS equipment to establish that the manufacturer has manufactured and supplied the quantity of the DGPS equipment as per Table-1 below in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document.

Table-1 Compliance for equipment manufacturer

S No	EXTERNAL RADIO (ER) SWATTWITHCOMPLETE HARDWARE OFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS NCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS FTER COMPLETION OF WARRANTY ERIOD OF TWO YEARS COMPLETE AS PER	Total quantity to be supplied as per schedule of requirement	Minimum number of required quantityin any two of last seven years
1	SUPPLY OF RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO (ER) 35WATTWITHCOMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER COMPLETION OF WARRANTY PERIOD OF TWO YEARS COMPLETE AS PER TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.	08 Nos RTK DGPS	3
		1 no External Radio	

- III- The bidder should have after sales support in the region (within a radius of 500 km from the State Capital). If bidder does not have any after sales support office within 500 km from state Capital at the time of bidding, he shall require to establish the same within one month after successful award of contract
- **IV-** Even though the bidders meet the above qualifying criteria, they are subject to be disqualified if they have made misleading or false representations in the forms, statements and attachments submitted in proof of the qualification requirements; and/or record of poor performance such as, not properly completing the contract, inordinate delays in completion, litigation history, or financial failures etc.

FINANCIAL PART

- 2. Margin of Preference (ITB 37) Not Applicable
- 3. Evaluation (ITB 30, 31, and 34)
- 3.1.Evaluation Criteria (ITB 34.5)

The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Section to evaluate Bids. By applying the criteria and methodologies, the Purchaser shall determine the substantially responsive lowest-evaluated bid.

The evaluation will take into account cost of comprehensive AMC for 3 years after warranty period.

3.2. Multiple Contracts (ITB 34.3)Not Applicable

SECTION IV – BIDDING FORMS

1A. LETTER OF BID-TECHNICAL PART

The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and address.

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these forms and shall be deleted from the final products.

No alterations to the text except as provided in ITB20.2, shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted except as provided in ITB 12.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Invitation for Bid No.: [insert No of IFB]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To:

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- (a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda No.issued in accordance with ITB 8: [insert the number and issuing date of each Addenda];
- (b) We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) We havenot been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Purchaser based on execution of a Bid Securing Declaration in the Purchaser's country in accordance with ITB 4.6;
- (d) We offer to supply in conformity with the Bidding Documents and in accordance with the Delivery Schedules specified in the Schedule of Requirements the following Goods and Related Services *[insert a brief description of the Goods and Related Services]*;
- (e) Our bid shall be valid for the period of time specified in ITB Sub-Clause 18.1, from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 22, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (f) If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with the Bidding Documents;

- (g) Weare not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
- (h) We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Purchaser's Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;
- (i) We are not a government owned entity/ We are a government owned entity but meet the requirements of ITB 4.5;¹
- (j) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (k) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive;
- (I) We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any type of fraud and corruption; and
- (m) We undertake that, in competing for (and, if the award is made to us, in executing) the above contract, we will strictly observe the laws against fraud and corruption in force in India namely, "Prevention of Corruption Act 1988."

Name of the Bidder [insert complete name of person signing the Bid]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder** <u>[insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]</u>

Title of the person signing the Bid [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above *[insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]*

Date signed [insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid Schedules.

_

¹Bidder to use as appropriate

1B. LETTER OF BID-FINANCIAL PART

The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and address.

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these forms and shall be deleted from the final products.

No alterations to the text except as provided in ITB 20.2, shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted except as provided in ITB 12.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Invitation for Bid No.: [insert No of IFB]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To:

We, the undersignedBidder, hereby submit the second part of our Bid, the Financial Part. In submitting our Financial Part we make the following additional declarations:

- (a) Our bid shall be valid for the period of time specified in ITB Sub-Clause 18.1, from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 22, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (b) The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (c) below, is:

In case of only one lot, total price of the Bid [insert the total price of the bid in words and figures];

In case of multiple lots, total price of each lot [insert the total price of each lot in words and figures];

In case of multiple lots, total price of all lots (sum of all lots) [insert the total price of all lots in words and figures];

- (c) The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:
 - (i) The discounts offered are: [Specify in detail each discount offered.]

(ii)	The exact method of calculations to	determine	the net	price after	applica	tion
	of discounts is shown below:[Specify	in detail	the mei	thod that sl	iall be u	ised
	to apply the discounts]; Discounts.					

(d)	The following commissions, gratuities, or fees have been paid or are to be paid with
	respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each
	Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and
	the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

(e) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed.

Name of the Bidder **[insert complete name of person signing the Bid]**

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder** <u>[insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]</u>

Title of the person signing the Bid **[insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]**

Signature of the person named above *[insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]*

Date signed [insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid Schedules.

2. BIDDER INFORMATION FORM

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

	Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process]
	Page of pages
1.	Bidder's Legal Name [insert Bidder's legal name]
	Bidder's actual or intended Country of Registration: [insert actual or intended Country of gistration]
3.	Bidder's Year of Registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration]
	Bidder's Legal Address in Country of Registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in untry of registration]
5.	Bidder's Authorized Representative Information
	Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]
	Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]
	Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]
	Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]
6.	Attached are copies of original documents of: [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]
	Articles of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in 1, above, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clauses 4.3.
	In case of government owned entity from the Purchaser's country, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with commercial law and not dependent agency of borrower or sub-borrower or purchaser, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 4.5.
	Included are the organizational chart ,a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership

Price Schedule Forms

[The Bidder shall fill in these Price Schedule Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the **Price Schedules** shall coincide with the List of Goods and Related Services specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements.]

2. PRICE SCHEDULE FOR SUPPLY AS PER SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

	Tender Inviting Authority: The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division, 3rd floor, Purta Bhawan, Purba Burdwan									
Name of Work: Supply, installation, testing, commissioning, training, Operation and maintenance of SCADA based Automatic Operation of Tilpara Mihirlal Barrage										
Contract No: WBIW/NHP/IFB-01/20-21										
Name										
of the										
Bidder/										
Biddin										
g Firm										
Ĭ										
Compa										
ny :										
				PRICE SO	CHEDIII	F				
	(DOMEST	IC TENDE	- P			= 'EN IN RUF	DEES (INE	P) ONL V)		
(This P	OQ template must not be m						•	,	or filling the	rolovant
•	•		•	•				· ·	_	
Colum	columns, else the bidder is liable to be rejected for this tender. Bidders are allowed to enter the Bidder Name and Values only)									
								1		
NUMB	TEXT #	TEXT	TEXT	NUMB	TEXT	NUMBE	NUMB	NUMBER	NUMBE	NUMBE
ER#		#	#	ER#	#	R #	ER		R	R

Line Item No.	Description of Goods	Count ry of origin	Delive ry Date	Quanti ty	Physi cal unit	Unit price EXW [excludi ng GST]	Total EXW price per line item (Col. 5X7)	Price per line item for inland transportat ion, insurance and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (ITB 14.8(a)(iii))	Total GST and other taxes payable per item if Contract is awarded (in accorda nce with ITB 14.8(a)(ii)	Total Price per line item [Excludi ng GST] (Col.8+9)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
1	Differential Global Positions Supply of RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO (ER) 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER COMPLETION OF TWO YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD	ioning		(DGPS)						
1.01	Supply of RTK DGPS MACHINES		45 days from date of signing of	8	Nos.		0.00			0.00

		contrac t							
1.02	Supply of AN EXTERNAL RADIO (ER)	45 days from date of signing of contrac t	1	Nos.		0.00			0.00
Grand Total of GST	Quoted GST in Words		I	NR Only Z	ero Only			0.00	
Grand Total	Quoted Rate in Words without GST	INR Only Zero Only						0.00	

Name of Bidder: [insert complete name of Bidder]
Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid]
Date [insert date]

B. PRICE AND COMPLETION SCHEDULE - RELATED SERVICES

Tender Inviting Authority: The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division, 3rd floor, Purta Bhawan, Purba Burdwan

Name of Work: "PROCUREMENT OF 8 NOS (BASE AND ROVER) RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER 2 YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD UNDER NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT"

Contract No: WBIW/NHP/IFB-17/21-22

Name of
the
Bidder/
Bidding
Firm /
Compan
y:

PRICE SCHEDULE

(DOMESTIC TENDERS - RATES ARE TO GIVEN IN RUPEES (INR) ONLY)

(This BOQ template must not be modified/replaced by the bidder and the same should be uploaded after filling the relevant columns, else the bidder is liable to be rejected for this tender. Bidders are allowed to enter the Bidder Name and Values only)

NUMBE R#	TEXT #	TEXT #	TEXT #	NUMBE R#	TEX T#	NUMBER	NUMBER #	NUMBE R	NUMBER
Service No.	Description of services (excludes inland transportation and other services required in India to convey the goods to their final destination)	Countr y of origin	Delivery Date at place of Final destinatio n	Quantity	Unit	Unit price (excludin g GST)	Total price (excludin g GST) (Col. 5 X 7)	GST Amount	Total Price per service [includin g GST] (Col. 8 + 9)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10

	RTK-Differential Global Posi	tioning S	ystem(DGPS)			
1	Testing and Commissioning of RTK DGPS and external radio (ER)35W, required attachments at site, complete as per technical specificationswith two years warranty period						
1.01	Testing and Commissioning of RTK DGPS		45 days from date of signing of contract	8	No	0.00	0.00
1.02	Testing and Commissioning of external radio (ER)		45 days from date of signing of contract	1	No	0.00	0.00
2	Comprehensive AMC for all RTK DGPS including with all accessories, installed at designated locations within West Bengal after warranty period This includes the replacement of batteries as and when required at bidder's cost.						

2.01	AMC for 1st year.	1st year after expiry of warranty period of 2 years	1	Lot		0.00		0.00	
2.02	AMC for 2nd year.	2nd year after expiry of warranty period of 2 years	1	Lot		0.00		0.00	
2.03	AMC for 3rdt year.	3rd year after expiry of warranty period of 2 years	1	Lot		0.00		0.00	
3	Training of the purchaser's personnel at the site in assembly, startup & operation of DGPS. configuration, necessary training manualsin soft and hard copies etc, Complete as per technical specifications	As per Training Schedule Continuous activity till warranty period	8	No.		0.00		0.00	
Grand Total of GST	Quoted GST in Words	INR Only Zero Only 0.00							
Grand Total	Quoted Rate in Words Including GST	INR Only Zero Only							

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder]
Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid
Date [insert date]

5. FORMS OF BID SECURITY

Form of Bid Security - Bank Guarantee

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

			[insert guarantee reference number][insert date of issue of the guarantee]
WHEREAS submitted 1	S,	l dated	[name of Bidder] ² (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has [date] or will submit his Bid for the supply of [name of Contract] (hereinafter called "the Bid") under
invitation i	or Bias	5 NO	[insert number] (hereinafter called "the IFB")
			these presents that We [name of bank] of [name of country] having our registered office at (hereinafter called "the Bank") are bound unto
sum of			[name of Purchaser] (hereinafter called "the Purchaser") in the
Bank binds	itself,	his succ	essors and assigns by these presents.
			on Seal of the said Bank this day of is obligation are:
	(1)	validit	r Bid opening the Applicant (a) withdraws his bid during the period of Bid y specified in the Letter of Bid; or (b) does not accept the correction of the Bid bursuant to ITB 31;
or			
	(2)		Applicant having been notified of the acceptance of his bid by the Purchaser the period of Bid validity:
		(a)	fails or refuses to execute the Contract Agreement in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, if required; or
		(b)	fails or refuses to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the Instruction to Bidders.
² In the case	of a JV.	the bidd	er should be stated as "a Joint Venture consisting of, and".

³The Applicant should insert the amount of the guarantee in words and figures denominated in Indian Rupees. This figure should be the same as shown in Clause 19.1 of the Instructions to Bidders.

we undertake to pay to the Purchaser up to the above amount upon receipt of his first written demand, without the Purchaser having to substantiate his demand, provided that in his demand the Purchaser will note that the amount claimed by him is due to him owing to the occurrence of one or any of the four conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions.

This Guarantee will remain in force up to and including the date 45 days after the deadline for submission of Bids as such deadline is stated in the Instructions to Bidders or as it may be extended by the Purchaser, notice of which extension(s) to the Bank is hereby waived. Any demand in respect of this guarantee should reach the Bank not later than the above date.

DATE	SIGNATURE OF THE BANK	
WITNESS	SEAL	
[signature, name, and address]		

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

6. MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZATION

[The Bidder shall require the Manufacturer to fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. This letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are legally binding on the Manufacturer. The Bidder shall include it in its bid, if so indicated in the **BDS**.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To:
The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division
I&W Department, Govt of West Bengal
WHEREAS

We [insert complete name of Manufacturer], who are official manufacturers of[insert type of goods manufactured], having factories at [insert full address of Manufacturer's factories], do hereby authorize [insert complete name of Bidder] to submit a bid the purpose of which is to provide the following Goods, manufactured by us [insert name and or brief description of the Goods], and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract against the above IFB.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 28 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered by the above firm against this IFB.

We as manufacturers of *[insert type of goods manufactured]* confirm to provide spares and service support for a minimum period of 10 years after commissioning.

Signed: [insert signature(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer]
Name: [insert complete name(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer] Title: [insert title]
Duly authorized to sign this Authorization on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder]
Dated on day of, [insert date of signing]
Note – Modify this format suitably in cases where manufacturer's warranty and sugrantee are not

Note – Modify this format suitably in cases where manufacturer's warranty and guarantee are not applicable for the items for which bids are invited. If the supply consists of number of items, indicate the specific item (s) for which alone the above authorization is required.

7. DECLARATION FOR CLAIMING TAX/ DUTY EXEMPTION⁴

(Name of the Project)

		of item to be supplied						
•		n for issue of certificate for claiming exemption of Tax evant notification)	/ Duty in terms of Government					
		ame and Address):	To (Name of Purchaser)					
Dear S	Sir:							
1.	we h	confirm that we are solely responsible for obtaining decaye considered in our bid and in case of failure to recessoever, Purchaser will not compensate us.	-					
2.	We are furnishing below the information required by the Purchaser for issue of necessary certificate in terms of Government of India's relevant notification.							
	(i)	Ex-factory price per unit on which the tax/dutyis pa	yable: *Rs.					
	(ii)	No of Units to be supplied:						
	(iii)	Total cost on which the tax/dutyis payable	(Rs.)					
	•	requirements listed above are as perCurrent notificatecessary, in terms of the rules in force)	ions. These may be modified,					
		(Signature)(Printed Name)(Designation)(Common Seal)						

^{*} Please attach details item-wise with cost, if there are more than one items. The figures indicated should tally with what is given in the price schedule.

⁴ This declaration refers to ITB 14.9 and shall be retained only if ITB 14.9 is retained. The format may be modified as per the latest instructions of Government of India.

8. PERFORMA FOR PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

[Please see ITB Clause 36.2 and Section III-Evaluation and Qualification Criteria]

Proforma for Performance Statement (for a period of last three/five years)

Bid No		Date of open	ing				Гіте	_ Hours
		Name of the	Firm					
Order placed by (full address of Purchaser)	Order No. and date	Description and Detail quantity of ordered equipment	<u>Value</u> <u>of order</u>	Date of completion of delivery 3. As per Actual contract		Remarks indicating reasons for late delivery, if any	Has the equip been satisfact functioning? (A a certificate from the purchaser/Core with details and approximate order valuation order valuation order valuation order status	Attach om the nsigne BOQ nate e, with
1	2	3	4	5	6	4. 7	5. 8	_
Signature and	d seal of the	Bidder						

SECTION V. - ELIGIBLE COUNTRIES

Public Information Center

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Non Consulting Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.7 and 5.1, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this bidding process:

Under ITB 4.7(a) and 5.1: None

Under ITB 4.7(b) and 5.1: None

SECTION VI. BANK POLICY - CORRUPT AND FRAUDULENT PRACTICES

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011.

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.⁵ In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;⁶;
 - ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;⁷
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;⁸

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

- (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;⁹
- (v) "obstructive practice" is:
 - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures, ¹⁰ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated ¹¹;

A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i)



PART 2 - SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS

SECTION VII – SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

1. LIST OF GOODS AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE

Line	Description of Goods	Quantity	Physical	Final (Site) Destination	Delivery	(as per Incoterms)	Date
Item N°			unit	as specified in BDS	Earliest Delivery Date	Latest Delivery Date 6.	Bidder's offered Delivery date
1	Differential Global Positioning System (DGPS)						
1	SUPPLY of RTK DGPS MACHINES AND AN EXTERNAL RADIO(ER) 35WATT WITH COMPLETE HARDWARE SOFTWARE AND OTHER PERIPHERALS INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 3 YEARS AFTER COMPLETION OF TWO YEARS WARRANTY PERIOD.						
	RTK DGPS MACHINES	08 Nos RTK DGPS	No.	Office of the Director, River Research Institute, Mohanpur, Nadia PIN-741246 West Bengal	45 days from date of signing of contract	45 days from date of signing of contract	
	EXTERNAL RADIO(ER)	1 no External Radio	No.	Office of the Director, River Research Institute, Mohanpur, Nadia PIN-741246 West Bengal	45 days from date of signing of contract	45 days from date of signing of contract	

LIST OF RELATED SERVICES {[ITB CLAUSE 14.8B]} AND COMPLETION SCHEDULE

List of Related Services									
Sl. No.	Description	Quantity	Physical Unit	Place where service be performed	Final completion date of service				
01	02	03	04	05	06				
S	Differential Global Positing System (DGPS)								
S-1	Testing and Commissioning of DGPS, complete as per technical specifications with two years warranty period	08	No.	Office of the Director, River Research Institute, Mohanpur, Nadia PIN-741246 West Bengal	45 days from the date of signing of Contract				
S-2	External Radio modem for base -35Watt including all accessories complete as per desired specification.	01	No	Do	do				
S-3	Comprehensive AMC for DGPS along with all accessories, installed at designated locations within West Bengal after 2 years warranty period This includes the replacement of batteries as and when required at bidder's cost;	01	Lot	Office of the Director, River Research Institute, Mohanpur, Nadia PIN-741246 West Bengal	1 st year after expiry of warranty period of 2 years				

		01	Lot	Office of the Director, River Research Institute, Mohanpur, Nadia PIN-741246 West Bengal	2 nd year after expiry of warranty period of 2 years
		01	Lot	Office of the Director, River Research Institute, Mohanpur, Nadia PIN-741246 West Bengal	3 rd year after expiry of warranty period of 2 years
S-4	Training of the purchaser's personnel at the site in assembly, startup & operation of DGPS for equipment configuration, necessary training manualsin soft and hard copies etc, Complete as per technical specifications	08	Nos. (Trainings)	As per the training schedules	As per the training schedules Continuous activity

3. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

1.0 GENERAL

Real Time Kinematic Differential Global Positioning System (RTK DGPS)

(BASE & ROVER INCLUDING ANTENNA RECEIVER CONTROLLER, FIELD & POST PORCESSING SOFTWARE and EXTERNAL RADIO)		
Sl. No	Point/Name	Specifications
1	MAIN	Identical Base & Rover complete system including accessories like Antenna receiver, controller and cables etc.
2.	BASE & ROVER	
2.1	ТҮРЕ	ANTENNA AND RECEIVER BUILT IN SINGLE HOUSING WITH BLUETOOTH & WI-FI COMMUNICATION
2.2	TRACKING	GPS: L1C/A, L2C, L2E, L5 GLONASS: L1C/A, L1P, L2C/A, L2P, L3 SBAS: L1C/A, L5 (For SBAS satellites that support L5). Galileo: E1, E5A, E5B, E5 AltBOC, E61 BeiDou: B1, B2, B3 QZSS: L1C/A, L1-SAIF, L1C, L2C, L5 NavIC (IRNSS): L5
3.	NO OF CHANNELS	440 or better.
4.	MODES	Static, Rapid Static kinematic, Real Time Kinematic.
	ACCURACY	
5	KINEMATIC & RTK (Real	Time Kinematic) PERFORMANCE
5.1	Horizontal Accuracy	8mm + 1 ppm (Parts per Million) or better.
5.2	Vertical Accuracy	15mm + 1 ppm or better.
	NETWORK RTK	
	Horizontal Accuracy	8mm + 0.5 ppm or better.

	Vertical Accuracy	15mm + 0.5 ppm or better.
6	STATIC PERFORMANCE	
6.1	HORIZONTAL	3mm+0.1ppm or better.
6.2	VERTICAL	3.5mm+0.4ppm or better.
	CODE DIFFERENTIAL GNSS I	POSITIONING
	Horizontal	0.25 m + 1 ppm or better.
	Vertical	0.50 m + 1 ppm or better.
7.	TILT COMPENSATOR (BASE & ROVER)	Inbuilt electronic level bubble and tilt compensation+- 30° or better (for on boat/ water vessel)
8.	LED STATUS INDICATOR	Satellite, transmission, Storage & Wi-Fi etc.
8.1	Data Storage Medium	Internal Storage 4 GB or more.
		External / Removable Storage Slot Memory stick or SD card
9.	COMMUNICATIONS	 Serial: serial (7-pin Lemo). Internal Radio Modem for receive/transmit- 2W(Watt) for rover and base or better. External radio Modem-35watt. Support of External radio protocol. Cellular GSM (external)/GPRS modem option. Bluetooth. Wi-Fi.
10.	POWER	Battery for continuous data logging at least 5.5hours/each.
11.	POWER CONSUMPTION	Not more than 5.2 watts.
12.	WEIGHT	Receiver with battery weight should be less than <1.5 kg.
13.	UPDATE RATE	20Hz (Hertz).
14.	OPERATIONAL TEMPURATURE	-10° C to +60° C or better.
15.	STORAGE TEMPURATURE	-10° C to +60° C or better.
16.	DUST & WATERPROTECTION	IP (Ingress Protection) 65 or better.
17.	SHOCK/DROP	2m or more on to hard surface.

18.	HUMIDITY	95% condensing or better.
19.	WARRANTY	Two-year standards comprehensive (including spares and labor) or higher.

2.2 SPECIFICATION FOR CONTROLLER

Sl. No	Point	Description
1.	ТҮРЕ	Scratch-resistant, touch-screen display, highly readable in both low light and glaring sunshine.
2.	OPERATING SYSTEM	Android 10 or better / Windows 10 or better.
3.	PROCESSOR	QUALCOMM Processor or Better.
4.	WEIGHT	Not more than 1.6 Kg.
5.	CAMERA & GPS	5 MP (Mega Pixel) or more resolution with autofocus and LED Flash Inbuilt GPS with Geo-tagging Facility.
6.	DISPLAY	Display with 5" or better with a resolution of 1280 X720 or better, LCD TFT, sunlight readable, back lite LED.
7.	GRAPHICALDISPLAY	Controller should be capable of creating complete points, lines in the field which will be displayed.
8.	KEYBOARD	On Screen full QWERTY key pad Hard and soft with Numeric keyboard for numbering & function short keys.
9.	MEMORY	RAM 4 GB or more, Internal memory 64GB or more, External through SD card.
10.	BATTERY	More than 10-15 hours on operation condition on a single charge.
11.	OPERATION	-10°C to +60°C or better.
12.	STORAGE	-10 C to +60 C or better.

13.	13. COMMUNICATION & FEATURE	I/O: USB Host (full speed).
		USB Client (high speed).
		DC power port, 9-pin serialRS232.
		Integrated quad-band GSM/GPRS/EDGE.
		Integrated Bluetooth.
		Integrated Wi-Fi.
		Audio: Integrated speaker and microphone with 3.5 mm stereo headset connection for audio system.
		5 MP or More with auto focus camera with dual white light LED flash, LED flashlight function
		Integrated compass with geo tagged images.
		Integrated accelerometer.
		SBAS support.
14.	DUST & WATER PROTECTION	lP65 water proof and dust proof or Better.
15.	DROP	1 m or better.
16.	WARRANTY	Two years standards comprehensive (including spares and labor) or higher.

2.3 CONTROLLER FIELD SOFTWARE

Sl. No	Point	Description
1.	SHOULD HAVEFOLLOWINGFUNCTIONS	The software should be able to log data for all the signals tracked & Static, Fast Static, RTK. Automatic survey (by distance, by time, stop & go) Satellite view status (quality, position, sky view, satellites list, base info, PDOP, HDOP), Line, polygon, area calculation, National grids, System settings (units, precision, parameters, etc.)
		The Software should allow configurable survey stylefor Static/PPK, RTK & Integrated /Smart/Combine Survey with TS and GNSS etc.
		Should be able to store GNSS data collected by the RTK system
		Should have datum and projection support, Should support Grid coordinates.
		Should support Feature Coding with attributes for GIS data collection. Control Coding should be possible for automatic plot creation.
		The Software should have color graphical support to visualize work while working
		Stake Out Should support Graphical stakeout, not only for points but for Lines as well. Should be able perform Real Time Quality Control for stake out positions
		should be able to accept background maps JPEG/TIFF,DXF/DWG
		Export to industry standard formats like CSV,DXF,KML etc
		Should support COGO functionality, Should be able to key in Lines, Sub-divide lines and creating parallel lines for staking out purpose.
		Calculation of transformation parameters from point list.
		Data formats input and outputs
		CMR: CMR+, CMRx input and outputs
		•RTCM: RTCM 2.1, RTCM 2.3, RTCM 3.0, RTCM 3.1
		•NMEA outputs,
2.	ELLIPSOIDS	All common ellipsoids, User definable ellipsoids.
3.	MAP PROJECTIONS	Mercator, Transverse Meracator, User definable UTM and country specific Oblique Mercator, Lambert (1 and 2 standard).

		parallels) Soldner Cassini, Polar Stereographic, Double Stereographic, RSO, other country specific projection.
4.	GEOIDAL MODEL	Upload Geoidal model to system.
5.	GRAPHICS	Graphical representation of points, lines and areas application result plots.
6.	ICONS	Icons indicating the current status of measure modes, settings, battery etc. It should be possible to configure or see status of the icons devices by touching on the screen.
7.	CONFIGURATION SETS	Ability to store and transfer all instrument and application configuration settings for differentoperators, survey tasks etc.
8.	FREE CODING	Recording codes with optional attributes in between of measurements.
9.	THEMATICAL CODING	Manual code entry or selection from a user defined coding point. Lines and areas with optional attributes when measuring Manual code entry or selection from a user defined.
10.	QUICK CODING	Recording a measurement with a point code or free code by entering numerical quick code from user defined code list.
11.	AVERAGING	Averaging of multiple points within user defined.
12.	ON BOAR-D PROGRAMMES	Surveying, Staking, COGO, Area, Two-point distance, Hidden point measurements.
13.	ON BOARDAPPLICATION	Controller should have software to work in both GPS and TPS mode and should support survey data collection, job creation, Graphical stakeout, Map screen with zoom in.
14	DATA SHARING	Share and transfer coordinates of the measured points & field and Office Processing Software always connected at the end of the survey.

2.4 OFFICE SOFTWARE

Sl. No	Point	Description
1.	PLATFORM	Inbuilt CAD Platform Calculate distance & Angle between points, Line Joining, polygon, text, circle, etc the software should be a combined software capable of handling the GPS, TPS and Digital level data.
2.	IMPORT	Should be able to import Raw data from all GNSS constellations (GPS, Galileo, BEIDOU, and GLONASS) receiver as well as RINEX data. Also should be able to import raw data as well as precise ephemeris data via internet IGS data from net. Capable of Exporting the data in RINEX format as well in CAD Format.
3.	EXPORT	Capable of Exporting the data in RINEX format as well as capable of transferring the maps directly to CAD with the code lists enabling the code to be attached without manual editing.
4.	Baseline Processing	Should be capable of processing all imported raw data for L1/L2/L5 Individually and combined.
5.	REPORTING	Software should be capable of generating HTML Style reports directly for the surveyed data.
6.	PROCESSING OPTIONS	Capable of Processing the Raw static data of GPS and GLONASS for both manually and automatically.
7.	DATUM TRANSFORMATION	Capable of transferring the data from one datum to another for given set of common points with or without the knowledge of datum.
8.	ADJUSTMENT	Capable of performing 3D adjustments for the surveyed area of GPS networks.
9.	OPERATING SYSTEM	Designed to run on windows 10 operating system or latest.
10.	DATUM CONVERSION	Facility to compute parameters for datum conversion.
11.	COGO CALCULATION	Software should be capable of computing the coordinates of unknown points using reference points and coordinates.
12.	IMAGE REFERENCING	Software should have an image referencing module and the surveyed data should be imported directly on the back ground of Raster Image.
13.	IMPORT RTK DATA	Should be able to handle RTK data and be able to Process RTK data.
14.	SURFACE	The software should be a capable of Surface Modelling, 3D visualization

	& CONTORING	and quick contouring.	
--	-------------	-----------------------	--

2.5 Additional/Miscellaneous Terms and Conditions.

Sl.No	Point	Description
		2 Years Comprehensive (including spares and labor).
1.	Warranty	All software updates should be provided free of cost during Comprehensive Warranty Period.
		During the warranty period, desired uptime of 95% of 365/366 (Leap Year) days (24 Hrs), if downtime more than 5%, the warranty period will be extended by double the downtime period. In addition, a penalty equal to amount of 0.25% of the total cost of equipment per day will be liable for the excess downtime period. Complaints should be attended properly, maximum within 7 calendar days.
2.	After Sales Service	After sales service center should be available at the major cities on 24 (Hrs.) X 7 (days) X 365 (days) basis. The Bidder must have a service center in West Bengal. Complaints should be attended properly, maximum within 48 hours. The service should be provided directly by Bidder/Indian Agents. Undertaking, that the spares for the equipment shall be available for at least 7 years from the date of supply of equipment is to be submitted by the participants in the "Manufacturer Authorization Form".
3	Training	Onsite training to 10 technical staff at referred/supplied place. The training is to be provided by Principal/ Indian Agents (if they have the requisite know-how for operation and maintenance of the equipment to the satisfaction of the User Department).
4	Technical Demonstration	The technical evaluation of the goods will include product demonstration and infield testing. The date of such product demonstration will be notified after the technical bid opening date.
5	Product Data Sheet	Data sheet of the product(s) offered in the bid are to be uploaded along with the bid documents. Buyers can match and verify the data sheet with the product specifications offered. In case of any unexplained mismatch of technical parameters, the bid is liable for rejection.
6	Manufacturers Authorization Form	Upload Manufacturer authorization: Wherever Authorized Distributors are submitting the bid, Manufacturers Authorization Form (MAF)/ Certificate with OEM details such as name, designation, address, email ID and phone No. required to be furnished along with the bid. All accessories, hardware and software (field and post processing) should be of same OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer)
7	Documents/ Certificates	Bidder's offer is liable to be rejected if they don't upload any of the certificates/documents sought in the Bid documents, ATC and Corrigendum is any.

8	Indian Currency	Bidder offer the price of items quoting in BOQ in Indian Currency only allowed including all taxes.
9	Uptime & Downtime	The firm should provide uptime guarantee of 95% during warranty period.
10	Penalty Clause	During the warranty period, desire uptime of 95% of 365/366 (Leap Year) days (24 hrs.), if downtime more than 5%, the warranty period/CAMC period will be extended by double the downtime period. In addition, a penalty equal to amount of 0.25% of the total cost of equipment per day will be liable for the excess downtime period. Complaints should be attended properly, maximum within 7 calendar days.

2.6 External Radio:

External Radio		
General	An external radio compactable to receiver and capable to receive RTK corrections from base receiver and to transmit it to a distant rover shouldbe supplied	
Transmission Range	Appx 10 km required.	
Frequency range	Can be tune to a range between 410 to 470 MHz. A wider range is also acceptable	
Power supply	It should work on a DC input of 12 V	
Carrier Power	Should have a maximum carrier power of 35W	
External Radio Antenna	A compactable antenna with cable of minimum 10 m length and all other mounting accessories, technical data and used guide etcmust be supplied	

2.7A. BASE STATION.

SL. No.	ITEM	QUANTITY (No)
1.	Receiver	04 (four)
2.	Wooden Telescopic Tripod	04
3.	Tribrach with optical plummet,	04
4.	Base Extension Rod	04
5.	Rechargeable batteries	08 (eight)
6.	charger, (charge two battery simultaneously)	04
7.	Carrying case	04
8.	External Radio modem for base -35Watt	01(one)
9.	Data Processing Unit(Laptop)	2 (Two)

2.7B. ROVER STATION

SL. No.	ITEM	QUANTITY (No)
1.	Receiver	04 (Four)
2.	Wooden Telescopic Tripod	04
3.	Tribrach with optical plummet,	04
4.	Rechargeable batteries	08 (Eight)
5.	charger (Charge Two Battery Simultaneously)	04
6.	2m Carbon fiber Aluminum Telescopic 04	
7.	Aluminum Telescopic bipod	04
8.	Controller with Battery, Charger & cable	04
9.	Controller Software	04
10.	Controller mount bracket	04

11.	External Battery Cable	04
-----	------------------------	----

Special NOTE: -

- 1. Bidders are requested to go through the technical specifications All the Fields are must (100% matching or higher specification) for Technical Evaluation of the RTK DGPS Equipment.
- 2. The above noted Specifications are the guideline for quoting the rates. The Tendering Authority has discretionary power in accepting/rejecting the bid submitted by the tenderer with any deviation from the above noted specifications for DGPS Equipment.
- 3. All Accessories, Hardware and Software (field and post processing) should be of the same OEM with single authorization.

2.8 Specification for hardware

(Laptop for post processing)

Operating system	WINDOWS (Preloaded) 10 Pro 64-bit English, Microsoft(R) Office Home and Business 2019 or better and other relevant software (Power Manager, Support Assist OS Recovery Tool etc).
Processor	INTEL CORE i7 OR BETTER
Memory/RAM	8 GB DDR 4 OR BETTER
Hard drive description	1 TB 5400 RPM HDD OR BETTER
Display	35.36 cm diagonal HD OR BETTER
Antivirus	Standard antivirus for 3 year
Battery description	Up to 12 Hours (4 Cell 64Whr Battery)
Mouse	Optical mouse
Warranty	2 YEAR ONSITE WARRANTY (min)

2.9 TRAINING

Training on supply: For the DGPS supplied, the supplier is required to train the designated purchasers technical and end-user personnel to enable them to effectively operate the total system at least for four days. The training schedule will be agreed to by both parties during the performance of the Contract.

All arrangements for training will be made by the purchaser at their cost. The trainings will be conducted at site as per desire of the purchaser.

Training during AMC: The training shall include field trainings at least once in each year for two days.

1. PROFORMA OF CERTIFICATE FOR ISSUE BY THE PURCHASER AFTER SUCCESSFUL INSTALLATION AND STARTUP OF THE SUPPLIED GOODS.

[This only]	is to be attached for	or supply, erection, superv	rision of erection and startup contracts
No.			Date:
M/S			
Sub:	Certificate of sta	artup of the supplied Goods	
1.	received in goo (subject to remain	od condition along with al arks in Para No. 2) and a	ment as detailed below has/have been I the standard and special accessories set of spares in accordance with the installed and commissioned.
	a) Contract No		dated
	b) Description	of the Equipment	
	c) Sl. No		
			dated
2			
2.	account.	sories/spares not yet suppl	lied and recoveries to be made on that
	Sl. No.	Description	Amount to be recovered

1.	The proving test has been done to our entire satisfaction and operators have been trained to operate the plant.
2.	The supplier has fulfilled his contractual obligations satisfactorily. *
	Or
	The supplier has failed to fulfill his contractual obligations with regard to the following.
	(a)
	(b)
	(c)
	(d)
3.	The amount of recovery on account of non-supply of accessories and spares is given under Para No. 2
4.	The amount of recovery on account of failure of the supplier to meet his contractual obligations is as indicated in endorsement of the letter.
	Signature
	Name
	Designation with Stamp

- a) He has adhered to the time schedule specified in the contract in dispatching the documents/drawings pursuant to Technical Specifications.
- b) He has supervised the startup of the plan in time i.e., within the period specified in the contract from the date of intimation by the Purchaser in respect of the installation of the plant.
- c) Training of personnel has been done by the supplier as specified in the contract
- d) In the event of documents/drawings having not been supplied or installation and startup of the plant have been delayed on account of the supplier, the extent of delay should always be mentioned.

Note: This form is for the information only. It is not to be filled and submitted / uploaded along with the bid.

^{*} Explanatory notes for filling up the certificates

PART 3 – CONTRACT

SECTION VIII – GENERAL	L CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Section VII. General Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

1.	DEFINITIONS	
2.	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	
3.	CORRUPT & FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	92
4.	INTERPRETATION	92
5.	LANGUAGE	93
6.	DELETED	94
7.	ELIGIBILITY	94
8.	NOTICES	94
9.	GOVERNING LAW	94
10.	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES	94
11.	INSPECTIONS AND AUDIT BY THE BANK	95
12.	SCOPE OF SUPPLY	95
13.	DELIVERY AND DOCUMENTS	95
14.	SUPPLIER'S RESPONSIBILITIES	95
15.	CONTRACT PRICE	95
16.	TERMS OF PAYMENT	95
17.	TAXES AND DUTIES	96
18.	PERFORMANCE SECURITY	96
19.	COPYRIGHT	
20.	CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	97
21.	SUBCONTRACTING	97
22.	SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS	98
23.	PACKING AND DOCUMENTS	98
24.	INSURANCE	98
25.	TRANSPORTATION& INCIDENTAL SERVICES	99
26.	INSPECTIONS AND TESTS	99
27.	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	.100
28.	WARRANTY	.101
29.	PATENT INDEMNITY	.101
30.	LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	.102
31.	CHANGE IN LAWS AND REGULATIONS	103
32.	FORCE MAJEURE	
33.	CHANGE ORDERS AND CONTRACT AMENDMENTS	104
34.	EXTENSIONS OF TIME	104
35.	TERMINATION	.105
36.	ASSIGNMENT	.106

Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract

- **1. Definitions** The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
 - (a) "Bank" means the World Bank and refers to the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) or the International Development Association (IDA).
 - (b) "Contract" means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
 - (c) "Contract Documents" means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto.
 - (d) "Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom, as may be made pursuant to the Contract.
 - (e) "Day" means calendar day.
 - (f) "Completion" means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.
 - (g) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract.
 - (h) "Goods" means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract.
 - (i) "Purchaser's Country" is India.
 - (j) "Purchaser" means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the SCC.
 - (k) "Related Services" means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, start-up, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the

Contract.

- (1) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.
- (m) "Subcontractor" means any natural person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier.
- (n) "Supplier" means the natural person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, whose bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement.
- (o) "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place named in the SCC.

2. Contract Documents

2.1 Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole.

3. Corrupt & Fraudulent Practices

- 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Appendix to the GCC.
- 3.2 The Purchaser requires the Supplier to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.

4. Interpretation 4.1

- 4.1 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.
- 4.2 Incoterms.
- (a) Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties thereunder shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.
- (b) The terms EXW and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms

specified in the **SCC** and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.

4.3 Entire Agreement

The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

4.4 Amendment

No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto.

4.5 Nonwaiver

- (a) Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.
- (b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.

4.6 Severability

If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.

5.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be English. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in English language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this

translation shall govern.

5.2 The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language

and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier.

6. Deleted

7. Eligibility

- 7.1 The Supplier and its Subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A Supplier or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.
- 7.2 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank shall have their origin in Eligible Countries. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

8. Notices

- 8.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the SCC. The term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.
- 8.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

9. Governing Law

9.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Union of India.

10. Settlement of Disputes

- 10.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
- 10.2 If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure specified in the

SCC.

- 10.3 Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,
 - (a) the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
 - (b) the Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier.

11. Inspections and Audit by the Bank

- 11.1 The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs
- 11.2 The Supplier shall permit, and shall cause its Subcontractors to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Supplier's offices and all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the bid, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if requested by the Bank. The Supplier's and its Subcontractors and consultants' attention is drawn to Clause 3 [Fraud and Corruption], which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under this Sub-Clause 11.1 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures)

12. Scope of Supply

12.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the **Special Conditions of Contract**.

13. Delivery and Documents

13.1 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the SCC.

14. Supplier's Responsibilities

14.1 The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the Scope of Supply in accordance with GCC Clause 12, and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13.

15. Contract Price

15.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the SCC.

16. Terms of Payment

- 16.1 The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the SCC.
- 16.2 The Supplier's request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in

writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfillment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract.

- 16.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it.
- 16.4 The payments shall be made in Indian Rupees to the Supplier under this Contract.
- 16.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the SCC, the Purchaser shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the SCC, for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award.

17. Taxes and Duties

17.1 The Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser.

18. Performance Security

- 18.1 If required as specified in the SCC, the Supplier shall, within twenty-one (21) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the SCC.
- 18.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 18.3 As specified in the SCC, the Performance Security shall be denominated in the Indian Rupees, and shall be in the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the SCC, or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser.
- 18.4 The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the SCC.

19. Copyright

19.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials

shall remain vested in such third party.

20. Confidential Information

- 20.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20.
- 20.2 The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract.
- 20.3 The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
- (a) the Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the Bank or other institutions participating in the financing of the Contract;
- (b) now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;
- (c) can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or
- (d) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 20.4 The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof.
- 20.5 The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

21. Subcontracting

21.1 The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the bid. Such notification, in the original bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier

from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract.

21.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7

22. Specifications and Standards

- 22.1 Technical Specifications and Drawings
- (a) The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods' country of origin.
- (b) The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser.
- (c) Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33.

23. Packing and Documents

- 23.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods' final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
- 23.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the SCC, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser.

24. Insurance

24.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms or in the manner specified in

the SCC.

25. Transportation & Incidental Services

- 25.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified Incoterms.
- 25.2 The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, **specified in Schedule of Requirements and SCC:**
 - (a) performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start-up of the supplied Goods;
 - (b) furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;
 - (c) furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;
 - (d) performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and
 - (e) training of the Purchaser's personnel, at the Supplier's plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods
- 25.3 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.

26. Inspections and Tests

- 26.1 The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the SCC.
- 26.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods' final destination, or in another place in the Purchaser's Country as specified in the SCC. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.
- 26.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.

- 26.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.
- 26.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier's reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier's performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected.
- 26.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
- 26.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4.
- 26.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract.

27.Liquidated Damages

27.1 Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the SCC of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those SCC. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35.

28. Warranty

- 28.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contract.
- 28.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.
- 28.3 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the SCC, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier.
- 28.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.
- 28.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the SCC, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.
- 28.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the SCC, the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract.

29. Patent Indemnity 29.1

- 29.1 The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser's compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:
- (a) the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; and

(b) the sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.

Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract.

- 29.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser's name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.
- 29.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.
- 29.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier's request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 29.5 The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser.

30. Limitation of Liability

- 30.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,
 - (a) the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated

damages to the Purchaser, and

(b) the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the purchaser with respect to patent infringement.

31. Change in Laws and Regulations

31.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in India, where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15.

32. Force Majeure 32.1

The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.

- 32.2 For purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.
- 32.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

33. Change Orders and Contract **Amendments**

- The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through 33.1 notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:
- drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be (a) furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;
- (b) the method of shipment or packing;
- (c) the place of delivery; and
- (d) the Related Services to be provided by the Supplier.
- 33.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier's receipt of the Purchaser's change order.
- 33.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.
- 33.4 Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.

Time

34. Extensions of 34.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.

34.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 26, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1.

35. Termination 35.1 Termination for Default

- (a) The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:
 - (i) if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34;
 - (ii) if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; or
 - (iii) if the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in fraud and corruption, as defined in GCC Clause 3, in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (b) In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

35.2 Termination for Insolvency.

(a) The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser.

- 35.3 Termination for Convenience.
- (a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser's convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- (b) The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier's receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:
 - (i) to have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/or
 - (ii) to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.
- **36. Assignment** 36.1 Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party.

APPENDIX TO GENERAL CONDITIONS Bank's Policy- Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011:

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts. In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party; ii;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation; iii
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;^{IV}
 - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party; "
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is:
 - deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
 - (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors,

- service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures, ¹² including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated ¹³;
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank."

A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

SECTION IX. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

7.

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and / or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

GCC 1.1(j)	The Purchaser is: The Executive Engineer, Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division I&W Department, Govt. of West Bengal-713103 E mail: eebipd2012@gmail.com Tel: 0342 2646799
GCC 1.1 (0)	The Project Site(s)/Final Destination(s) is/are: as mentioned in Schedule of Requirements Section IV.
GCC 4.2 (a)	The meaning of the trade terms shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.
GCC 4.2 (b)	The version edition of Incoterms shall be 2010.
GCC 8.1	For <u>notices</u> , the Purchaser's address shall be: Attention: The Executive Engineer Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division Irrigation & Waterways Directorate Govt. of West Bengal PurtaBhawan, 3 rd Floor Purba Burdwan-713103, West Bengal,Pin code :713103 E mail: <u>eebipd2012@gmail.com</u> Tel: 0342 2646799
GCC 10.2	Settlement of Disputes The dispute settlement mechanism to be applied for adhoc arbitration shall be as follows:
	(a) (a) In case of Dispute or difference arising between the Purchaser

and a domestic supplier relating to any matter arising out of or connected with this agreement, such disputes or difference shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 as amended up-to date. The arbitral tribunal shall consist of 3 arbitrators one each to be appointed by the Purchaser and the Supplier. The third Arbitrator shall be chosen by the two Arbitrators so appointed by the Parties and shall act as presiding arbitrator. In case of failure of the two arbitrators appointed by the parties to reach upon a consensus within a period of 30 days from the appointment of the arbitrator appointed subsequently, the Presiding Arbitrator shall be appointed by the president of the institution of Engineers (India).

(b)In the case of a dispute with a Foreign Supplier, the dispute shall be settled in accordance with provisions of UNCITRAL (United NationsCommission on International Trade Law) Arbitration Rules. The Arbitral Tribunal shall consist of three Arbitrators one each to be appointed by the Purchaser and the Supplier. The third Arbitratorshall be chosen by the two Arbitrators so appointed by the parties, and shall act as presiding arbitrator. In case of failure of the two arbitrators appointed by the parties to reach upon a consensus within a period of 30 days from the appointment of the arbitrator appointed subsequently, the Presiding Arbitrator shall be appointed by the President of the Institution of Engineers (India).

- (c) If one of the parties fails to appoint its arbitrator in pursuance of subclause (a) and (b) above, within 30 days after receipt of the notice of the appointment of its arbitrator by the other party, then the president of the Institution of Engineers (India), both in cases of the Foreign supplier as well as Indian supplier, shall appoint the arbitrator. A certified copy of the order of the President of the Institution of Engineers (India), making such an appointment shall be furnished to each of the parties.
- (d)Arbitration proceedings shall be held at Kolkata, and the language of the arbitration proceedings and that of all documents and communications between the parties shall be English
- (e) The decision of the majority of arbitrators shall be final and binding upon both parties. The cost and expenses of Arbitration proceedings will be paid as determined by the arbitral tribunal. However, the expenses incurred by each party in connection with the preparation, presentation etc. of its proceedings as also the fees and expenses paid to the arbitrator appointed by such party or on its behalf shall be borne by each party itself.
- (f) Where the value of the contract is Rs. 10 million and below, the disputes or differences arising shall be referred to the Sole

	Arbitrator. The Sole Arbitrator should be appointed by agreement between the parties; failing such agreement, by the appointing authority namely the President of the Institution of Engineers (India). (g) Except otherwise agreed to by the Parties, Arbitrators should give a decision in writing within 120 days of receipt of notification of dispute.		
GCC 12.1 and 25.2	The scope of supply for the Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the Schedule of requirement.		
GCC 13.1		Shipping and other Documents to be furnished by the	
	GCC 13.1 Upon delivery of the goods to the transporter/consignee, the supplier shall notify the purchaser and mail the following documents to the Purchaser:		
	(i) Four Copies of the Supplier in number, goods description, camount;	_	
	(ii) Delivery note, Railway receinde or equivalent transcription acknowledgement of receinded Consignee;	nsport document or	
	(iii) Four Copies of packing list each package;	identifying contents of	
	(iv) Insurance certificate;		
	(v) Manufacturer's/Supplier's wa	arranty certificate;	
	(vi) Inspection certificate issue inspection agency, and to inspection report; and	•	
	(vii) Certificate or origin.		

	The above documents shall be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods (except where it is handed over to the Consignee with all documents) and if not received, the supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses.	
GCC 14.1	ADD to GCC;	
	The supplier is responsible for and obliged to conduct all contracted activities in accordance with the contract using state- of- the- art methods and economic principles and exercising all means available to achieve the performance specified in the Contract	
	The Supplier is obliged to work closely with the Purchaser's staff, act within its own authority and abide by directives issued by the Purchaser and implementation activities.	
	The Supplier will abide by the job safety measures prevalent in India and will free the Purchaser from all demands or responsibilities arising from accidents or loss of life the cause of which is the supplier's negligence. The Supplier will pay all indemnities arising from such incidents and will not hold the purchaser responsible or obligated	
	The Supplier is responsible for managing the activities of its personnel or sub- contracted personnel and will hold itself responsible for any misdemeanors	
	The Supplier will treat as confidential all data and information about the purchaser, obtained in the execution of his responsibilities, in strict confidence and will not reveal such information to any other party without the prior written approval of the Purchaser	
GCC 15.1	The prices charged for the Goods supplied and the related Services performed <i>shall not be</i> adjustable.	
GCC 16.1	GCC 16.1 Payment shall be made in Indian Rupees in the following manner:	
	a. 70% (Seventy Percent) of the contract price excluding AMC cost shall be released after 30 days of the successful testing, commissioning and training before/during commissioning and it's the final acceptance.	
	b. 30% (Thirty Percent) of the Contract Price excluding AMC cost (for 2 years of warranty period) to be paid on Half Yearly basis (7.5% at every six month) inclusive of GST	

	payable, subjected to satisfactory completion of warranty	
	support &mandatory training as mentioned in technical specifications apart from above payment	
	c. AMC cost for three years inclusive of GST payable on it, shall be paid on half yearly basis after 2 years of onsite manufacturer warranty period.	
	d. Payment of GST will be against valid Invoice as per GST Act & Rules and submission of GST Registration Certificate along with declaration that GST Registration is valid and all liabilities towards GST have been discharged by the vendor. GST amount will be reimbursed after 30 days of submission of valid Invoice and all required documents and declaration by vendor.	
	The bidder shall indicate in the Price Schedules specifying all items prices shown therein including the unit prices and total prices of the goods and related services along with GST or any other duties and taxes applicable against the schedule of requirements. GST if liveable shall be paid as applicable. Any statutory variation shall be paid on submission of documentary evidence. Bidders shall be required to quote HSN code and applicable tax rates.	
	"GST" means all four Acts CGST, SGST, UTGST, IGST and any other regulations by Government in relation to GST and rules thereto.	
	Note: The award of CAMC for 3Years after expiring of warranty will be at the discretion of purchaser, subjected to NHP tenure	
GCC 16.5	The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the supplier shall be 60 days.	
	The interest rate that shall be applied is 02% per annum	
GCC 17	In the case of tax/ duty waiver, the purchaser will issue only the certificates in terms of the Government of India's notification as per information given by supplier in form stipulated in Section IV. Supplier is solely responsible for obtaining such benefits and in case of failure to receive such benefits, the purchaser will not compensate the supplier separately.	

GCC 18.1	Within 21 days of notification of award, the supplier shall furnish the Performance Security to the Purchaser shall be for an amount of 5% of the contract value, valid up to 60 days after the date of completion of performance obligations including warranty obligations and Annual Maintenance services obligations.
	In the event of any correction of defects or replacement of defective material during the warranty period, the warranty for the corrected/replaced material shall be extended to a further period of 12 months and the Performance Bank guarantee for proportionate value shall be extended 60 days over and above the extended warranty period.
GCC 18.3	The Performance Security shall be in the form of a "Bank Guarantee" drawn in favour of the Purchaser. The Executive Engineer Burdwan Investigation & Planning Division. Purta Bhaban, Purba Bardhaman -713103 I & W D, West Bengal.
GCC 18.4	Discharge of the performance Security shall take place not later than 60 days following the date of completion of the Supplier's performance obligations, including the warranty obligation, and comprehensive AMCunder the contract.
GCC 18.5	Add as Clause 18.5 to the GCC the following: In the event of any contractual amendment, the Supplier shall, within 21 days of receipt of such amendment, furnish the amendment to the Performance Security, rendering the same valid for the duration of the Contract, as amended for 60 days after the completion of performance obligations including warrantyand Annual Maintenance services obligations.
GCC 23.2	Packing Instructions: The Supplier will be required to make separate packages for each Consignee. Each package will be marked on three sides with proper paint/indelible ink with the following: (i) Project; (ii) Contract No.; (iii) Country of Origin of Goods; (iv) Supplier's Name; (v) Packing List Reference Number. Suppliers should use recycled materials as much as possible for packing

GCC 24.1	The insurance shall be paid in an amount equal to 110 percent of the EXW value of the Goods from "Warehouse to warehouse (final destination)" on "All Risks" basis including War Risks and Strikes.
GCC 25.1	The Supplier is required under the Contract to transport the Goods duly insured to the specified final destination, and until the commissioning & final acceptance of each equipment, and all related costs shall be included in the Contract Price.
GCC 25.2	Incidental services to be provided are: All services under GCC clause 25.2
GCC 26.1	The inspections and tests shall be as detailed in Para 5 of Section VII-Schedule of Requirement: (a) The supplier shall get each item indicated in the Schedule of requirement inspected in manufacturer's works or at the premises of supplier and submit a test certificate and also manufacturer's guarantee /warranty certificate that the items are conforms to the laid down specification. The Purchaser or its representative may inspect and /or test any or all the items to confirm their conformity to the contract specification, prior to dispatch from the manufacturer's premises/supplier's premises. Such inspection and clearance will not prejudice the right of the consignee to inspect and test the items on receipt at destination to verify conformity to technical specification. If the items are fails to meet the laid down specifications the supplier shall take immediate steps to remedy the deficiency or replace the defective parts of the each to the satisfaction of the purchaser/ consignee.
GCC 26.2	The Inspections and tests shall be also be conducted at: at remote site and Office of the Director, R.R.I, Mohanpur, Nadia-741246, West Bengal., India as specified in technical specification.
GCC 27.1	The liquidated damages shall be: 0.1% of contract price per week or part thereof.
GCC 27.2	The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be: 10% of the contract price.

GCC 28.3	The period of validity of the onsite Warranty shall be 24 (Twenty Four) months after successful installation, testing, commissioning and acceptance. Warranty period shall be followed by 3 years comprehensive AMC. For purposes of the Warranty, the place(s) of final destination(s) shall be:Office of the Director, R.R.I, Mohanpur, Nadia-741246, West Bengal.	
GCC 28.5	The period for repair or replacement shall be: 15 days. The maximum response time for a complaint from the Purchaser/ authorized officer for the defect/breakdown after a request sms/ fax /e-mail is made or letter is written shall not exceed 48 hours. Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, visit the site and repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, without cost to the Department within stipulated time of 15 days. If any one equipment continues to remain "breakdown" for more than 15 days, the Supplier is liable to pay penalty @ Rs.1000/- per Day/ equipment. The Day for the purpose of penalty shall be taken as failure period of 24 hours or part thereof for a particular equipment. The amount of penalty will be recovered from performance bank guarantee or payment due to bidder during warranty period or AMC period	
GCC 28.6	The period shall be 14 days	
GCC 31.1	This clause will apply only to variations in GST and other taxes payable in India on the final product which is being supplied and not for variations in tax on the individual components / raw materials which go into the product.	
GCC 37	Add the following additional sub clauses. 37.1 Supplier integrity: The supplier is responsible for and obliged to conduct all contracted activities in accordance with the contract using state- of- the- art methods and economic principles and exercising all means available to achieve the performance specified in the Contract.	

37.2
Supplier's obligations:
The Supplier is obliged to work closely with the Purchaser's staff, act within its own authority and abide by directives issued by the Purchaser and implementation activities.
The Supplier will abide by the job safety measures prevalent in India and will free the Purchaser from all demands or responsibilities arising from accidents or loss of life the cause of which is the supplier's negligence. The Supplier will pay all indemnities arising from such incidents and will not hold the purchaser responsible or obligated.
The Supplier is responsible for managing the activities of its personnel or sub- contracted personnel and will hold itself responsible for any misdemeanors.
The Supplier will treat as confidential all data and information about the purchaser, obtained in the execution of his responsibilities, in strict confidence and will not reveal such information to any other party without the prior written approval of the Purchaser.
37.3
Site preparation and installation
The supplier is responsible for associated civil work required for installation and commissioning of the supplies in the Schedule of Requirement under the heading of Relative services
37.4
Hardware installation:
The Supplier is responsible for all unpacking, assemblies, wiring, installations, cabling between hardware units and connecting to power supplies. The Supplier will test all hardware operations and accomplish all adjustments necessary for successful and continuous operation of the hardware at all installation sites.

Attachment: Price Adjustment Formula (DELETED)

SECTION X – CONTRACT FORMS

1. LETTER OF ACCEPTANCE

[letterhead paper of the Purchaser]

Attachment: Contract Agreement

2. CONTRACT AGREEMENT

[The successful Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is made

the [insert: number] day of [insert: month], [insert: year].

BETWEEN

- (1) [insert complete name of Purchaser], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of of the Government of {insert name of Country of Purchaser}, or corporation incorporated under the laws of {insert name of Country of Purchaser}] and having its principal place of business at [insert address of Purchaser] (hereinafter called "the Purchaser"), and
- (2) [insert name of Supplier], a corporation incorporated under the laws of [insert: country of Supplier] and having its principal place of business at [insert: address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier").

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., [insert brief description of Goods and Services] and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services in the sum of [insert Contract Price in words and figures, expressed in Rs] (hereinafter called "the Contract Price").

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall constitute the Contract between the Purchaser and the Supplier, and each shall be read and construed as an integral part of the Contract Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other contract documents: In the event of any discrepancy or inconsistency within the Contract documents, then the documents shall prevail in the order listed below.
- (a) The letter of Acceptance
- (b) this Contract Agreement
- (c) The Supplier's letter of Bid and original completed Schedules including Price Schedules
- (d) Special Conditions of Contract
- (e) General Conditions of Contract

- (f) Technical Requirements (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications)
- (g) [Add here any other document(s)listed in GCC/SCC as part of contract]
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as hereinafter mentioned, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of [insert the name of the Contract governing law country] on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: [insert signature] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: [insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

3.Performance Security - Bank Guarantee [Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

	mance Guarantee No[insert guarantee reference number][insert date of issue of the guarantee]
То:	[name of Purchaser]
	[address of Purchaser]
"the A execute Service	WHEREAS [name and address of Supplier ¹⁴] (hereinafter called pplicant") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No dated to e [name of Contract and brief description of Goods and related as] (hereinafter called "the Contract");
	AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Applicant shall you with a Bank Guarantee by a recognized bank for the sum specified therein as security for ance with his obligations in accordance with the Contract;
	AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Applicant such a Bank Guarantee;
currenc	NOW THEREFORE we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you, on of the Applicant, up to a total of [amount of guarantee ¹⁵] [in words], such sum being payable in the types and proportions of sies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written
[amour	d and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of
present	We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Applicant before ing us with the demand.
14 In the	e case of a JV, insert the name of the Joint Venture

 15 An amount shall be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the percentage of the Contract Price

specified in the Contract and denominated in Indian Rupees.

¹²³

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Goods and related Services to be supplied thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Applicant shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

This guarantee shall be valid until (i.e.) 60 days following the Completion date	of the
Contract including any warranty obligations ¹⁶ , and any demand for payment under it must be recei	ved by
us at this office on or before that date.	

Signature and seal of the guaranto	or
Name of Bank	
Address	
Date	

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹⁶ Completion date as described in GC Clause 18.4

4.Advance Payment Security Demand Guarantee

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Advance Payment Guarantee No Date[insert data	[insert guarantee reference number] te of issue of the guarantee]
To:	[name of Purchaser]
	[address of Purchaser]
	[name of Contract]
Gentlemen:	
of the above-mentioned Contract, Supplier ¹⁷ [(hereinafter called "the Applican Purchaser] a bank guarantee to guarantee	f the Conditions of Contract, Clause 16 ("Terms of Payment")
agree unconditionally and irrevocably to g payment to [name of objection on our part and without his	bank or financial institution], as instructed by the Applicant, uarantee as primary obligator and not as Surety merely, the e of Purchaser] on his first demand without whatsoever right first claim to the Applicant, in the amount not exceeding tee] [in words].
or of Goods and related Services to be sup	addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract oplied thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which [name of Purchaser] and the Applicant, shall in any s guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change,
	Joint Venture

 18 An amount shall be inserted by the bank representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and

denominated in Indian Rupees.

¹²⁵

This guarantee shall remain val	lid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under
the Contract until	[name of Purchaser] receives full repayment of the
same amount from the Applicant. Considered by us at this office on or before	sequently any demand for payment under this guarantee must be a that date.
	Yours truly,
	Signature and seal:
	Name of Bank:
	Address:
	Date:

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.